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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION FOR BEHAVIORAL HEALTH

129PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301
«03-271-9544 1-800^52.3345 Ext. 9544

Fax:603.271-.4332 TDD Access: 1.800-^3S-2964 wsvw.dhhs.nh.gov

A|31iI4,2025

Her Excellency, Governor Kelly A. Ayotte
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral Health,
to enter into a Sole Source contract with New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors
Association (VC#170428), Concord, NH, in the amount of $400,000 to 1) provide training that
increases the ability of the behaviorai health workforce to engage with, and address the needs of,
individuals across the lifespan who are struggling with mental health and substance use disorders
with a focus on youth and young adults and 2) expand the workforce through credentialling
support, with the option to renew for up to two (2) additional years, effective upon Governor and
Council approval through September 29, 2026.100% Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2025 and are anticipated
to be available in State Fiscal Years 2026 and 2027, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-92-920510-70400000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS
DEPT, HNS: BEHAVIORAL HEALTH DIV, BUREAU OF DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES,
SCR GRANT

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057070 $24,437

2026 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 92057070 $88,144

2026 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc TBD $228,553

2027 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc TBD $58,866

Total $400,000

EXPLANATION

This request is Sole Source because the Contractor currently provides a comprehensive
array of professional development training for the substance use continuum of care workforce
and stakeholders through their existing Training Institute. The Contractor Is also the only known
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entity in NH that provides credentialing support for substance use prevention, recovery, and
treatrnent provider. The Contractor was named in" the .State's most recent federal grant

. ! ; V 3PP''t^tion due to its ability to quickly add iservices to theiriexjstlng programming; reducing theheed for program development and Increasing the effectiveness and reach of available funding.
.■/; This request is two-fold. First,' training provided through this Agreement will focus on the

complex needs of youth and young adults, aged 16 through;25 who are struggling with substance
.  rnisuse and substance use disorders. Service providers will,gain tools, insight, and key principles
'  of care to effectively engage youth and young adults in^services. Providers, targeted through this

Agreement, will include alcohol.and other drug prevention, treatment and recovery support
'  providers; primary and mental health care "providers; first responders; corrections personnel;

educators; community health workers; doulas; public health personnel; faith leaders; and other
community stakeholdeirs. '

Second, this Agreement expands support and resources for Licensed Drug arid Alcohol
Counselors and Certified Recovery Support Workers who currently hold and/or individuals who
are working towards licensing or certification., Services provided will address supervision needs;
provide assistance for application completion and exam preparation and will include the facilitation
of study groups and supervision mentorship sessions. Expansion of the existing Credentialing

•  , Support Partnership will help increase the provider workforce and access to services. This request
will allow the Department and the Contractor to.offer trainings that focus on strategies and
practices to address the complex needs of youth and young adults, aged 16 through 25, with
substance misuse and use disorders, and provide supports and resources through the

_  Credentialing Support Partnership program to address the supervision needs of Licensed Alcohol
and Drug Counselors and Certified Recovery Support Workers and to assist application review

/ and ,exani preparation support for Certified Recovery Support Workers.
'  ,"v^ Approximately 250-individuals.will be served between July 1, 2025, and September 29
2026. .

The Department will monitor services through the monthly review post-event trainee
7, ; satisfaction surveys and ̂ monthly progress reports to ensure contract goals and performance

^ measures are being met and to ensure: . , /
.  • Completed evaluation sheets are collected from no less than'85% of participants

who attend a training event. ■ . .
,  • . Trainee satisfaction survey .results reflect an 85% or higher rating of satisfaction. ,

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, of the original
agreement, the parties haye the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, ayailable funding, agreement of the parties and
Governor and Council approval.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request NH's behavioral health
workforce and cross-section stakeholders'may not have access to training" to support their
capability to address the needs of the individuals they serve, and Licensed Drug and Alcohol
Counselors and Certified pecoyery Support Workers may not have access to resources that
support their credentlalling needs. .

Area served: Statewide.
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^  .Source of-FederahFunds: AssistancelistingNuijiilJtiJ ̂ #93.788, FA'IN#H79TI087843.
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JRespectfu!!y •suhnhitted,

"*N ̂
A. Weaver

• dtcomrhissioner
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Docusign Envelope ID: 923B2B29-7C62-440B-81B3-ED75D4E76A70 FORM NUMBER P-37 (vcrsioil 2/23/2023)
Subject: Youlh Focused Trainings and Credentialjng Support Partnership (SS-2025-DBH-32-YOUTH-01)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and ,,
'  , • Executive Council for approval.. Any information tliat is private, confidential or proprieiary musi;

be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

^  AGREEMENT

;• . -The State of New Hampshire,and the Contractor hereby-mutually agree as follows: . .
,1 *

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. . IDENTIFICATION.

- r- I.

LI Slate Agency Name •
► - V

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services •

1.2 Stale Agency Address ' •
129 Pleasant Street ■ "
Concord, NH 03301-3857, •

1.3., Contractor N^e
New Hampshire Alcohol iind Drug Abuse Counselors
Association- ' '

1.4 Contractor Address , ' > ■'

130 Pembroke Road, Suite 150, Concord, NH 03301

1.5 . Contractor Phone
.  .Number

(603) 724-7520- ■'
1  • » «

1.6 'Account Unit and .Class •

TBD

1.7 Completion Date ;

9/29/2026 ,

1.8 Price Limiialiou

$400,OOO:'''

• 1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Robert W. Moore, Director

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number ;

(603) 271-9631 \ . ' ,v■
1.1 ' Contractor Signature 4/21/2025

Signed by; • ' ' .

(iuosftlA-L ■

'T. 12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Christine McKenna , •

President •

I.l 1  S'fa{eXgency'Signatiirc ■ ■_ 4/21/2025
DoeuSigned by: ■

fc* - ■ ■ ■ Date:

'1,14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory. :
Katja S. Fox • •

Di rector • '

,1.15 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division .of Personnel v

■■', . 'By: - ■ ■ pirectpr, On:- ; - ' - - ' . . ' '

1.16 Apprdvalby the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Exccution)V//"cr/7/'//ca6/e/' ' " . . , .
' " OocuSIb"®*! byi • ' • ' .

.  .. , • • .Oni^4/28/202S . ■ . , . ;

I.I7 Approval fey tfic'povcrnor and Executive Coimci) (//.applicable) . ■ ' ■ - , , ■

- G&Cilemnuniber:. ' ■ ' . ' G&C Meeting Dale: ^ '

y  ' '— ■ " "Page-.r6T4
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Docusign Envelope ID: 923B2B29-7C62-440B-81B3-ED75D4E76A70

2; SER^CES TO BE PERFOrKiED. The State of New
Hampshire, aciing-ihroiigh- the.agency idemified in block 1,1
("State"), engages contiacior identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor")
to perfo'mi, and the Contractor shall perform,'the work or sale,of
goods, or. both, identified and more particularly described in the
attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services"). ■' > . .•

3.. EFI^ECTIVE DATE/COMPLEtlON OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision^ of'jhis Agreement to the

.contrary, and subject .to the approval-of the Governor and,
.Executive Council of-the Siate of New Hampshire, if applicable,
tliis Agreement, and,all-obligations,of the panics hereimdef, shall-
become elTectiye on the dale the Governor and Executive Council
approve tliis Agreement. unless no'such approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall become effective on Uie date the

, Agreement is signed by the Slate Agency as shown in block T. 13
("ElTective Date"). , - •
3.2.If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Efieciive
Date, ail • Services, performed by ilie. Contractor prior to the
Effcctivc.Datc shall be'performcd at the sole risk of the Contractor,

. and in the event that this Agreement does not become effective, the
State shall have no liability to the Contractor, including without
limitation, any obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs
incurred or Sch'ices performed. , -
3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
' specified in block 1.7. • ^ ^

, 4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwitlistmiding any provision of this Agreement to tlic contrary,
all obligations of the State herciindcr, including, without limitation,

.tlic continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon tltc
■ availability and continued appropriation of funds. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such
available appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or
tcnnination of appropriated funds by any state or federal legislative

"or executive action Uiat reduces, eliminates or,otherwise modifies
• thc.apprdpriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, iii whole or in pai;t,
the Slate shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
tcnninatc the Services under this'-Agrecmcni immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such reduction or tenninatiori." The
' State slial! not be required to transfer funds from any other account

or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds
in'that Account arc reduced or unavailable. " ■

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAmENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT G
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 Notwitlistahding any provision in this.Agreement to the
contrary," and notwitlisuuiding unexpected' circumstances, in no

•  event shall the total of all payments autiiorizcd, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth iu'block 1.8. The
payment by the State of the contract price shall be the only and the
complete reimbursement "to the (Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever,'naturc incurred by the Contractor in the perfonnancc,

hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensation'to the • ,
Contractor for the Services, v . ^

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset fronv any ainounts '
otherwise:payable to the Contractor under this.Agreement those "'
liquidated amounts required or pcmiiited by-N.H. RSA 80:7 -
throughRSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law. , • ' •
•5:4 The'State's liability under this Agreement shall be limited to ...
monetaiy -damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this" -
Agreement by the State'and hereby waives any right to specific
performance or other equitable rct'ncdics against the State.

6.' COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT , /.

OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 111 coruieciion with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable siaiuies, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal ,
employment opportunity laws and the Governor's order on Respect .
aiid Civility in (he Workplace, Executive order 2020-01. In
addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the-
United States, ilie Contractor shall comply wiili^ all federal
cxccutiyc'ordcrs, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations and guidelines as llie State or tlie United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Conuactor shall also comply
with all applicable imcllcciual property laws.
6.2 During the tcmi of this Agreement, .the Conlracior shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of age, sex, sexual oriciualion, race, color, marital status,
physical or mental disability^ religious creed, national origin,
gender identity, or gender'expression, and will take affimiativc
•action lo-prcvcni such discriminaiion,'unless exempt by state or
'federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any" subcontractors
comply with these noudiscrimination requirements.
6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in connection witli this Agreement have or shall be
made which have the purpose or effect of public-or.comm'crcial
bribei7,"or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.
6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or.United Slates
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and
all rulcs. regulations and orders pertaining to the covcnants.-tcnns
and conditions of this AgrcciticiU.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 TTic Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel ctigagcd in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized
to do so under all applicablciaws.
7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9," or any
successor, shall be tlic State's point of contact pertaining to this
Agreement. . * ' ' . ' t " .

' -f .'
'• .•> "j* -
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES. • , 10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the
8.1 Any. one or more of the followihg .acts or.omissions of the State, or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this '

- - Contractor shall constitute anxvcnt of default hcreundcr ("Event ■'•Agreement,sbiall4)c-thc property of tlie State, and shall be returned
'of Default"):. ' *110 the State tgjonilemand or upon termination of this Agreement.
8.1.1 failure topcrform the. Services satisfactorily or on schedule; Tor.aiiy rca^n. • ■ ^
8.1.2 failure to submiiany report required hereuhdcr;.and/or .y03 _ipisclosuEeof idata, infoniiaiion and other records shall be "
8.1.3 failure to perform any other.covcnani, temi or condition of ^gpvemed .by'N.H. RSA chapter.91-A and/or other applicable law...

. this Agreement. . TDisdosurenxguiresprior-writtenapproval of the State.
'  .^8.2 Upon the.occurrence of any Event of Default' iherStaie liiay . _ , ,/ . ' •

take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions: '.'•11;-CONTRACTOR'S51ELATi6n TO THE STATE.; In the
8.2.1 give tlie Contractor a written notice specifying the 'Eveni'oT^jpeifonhancc.ipTlhis Agreement ,ihc Contractor is.in all respects an
Default and requiring it to be remedied witliin, in ibc-abseiicc.of.a ' independentcontractor, :and is neither an agent npr an employee of

■ greater or lesser specification of time, thirty'(30) calendar days 'ihe'Slaie. Nciflierthc'Gontractpr nor any of its officers, employees,
froin the date of llie notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely 'agents or raeinberssliall "have authority to bind the Stale or receive
cured," lenninate this Agreement, effective'two (2) calendar days 'any'benefits, workers' compensation or other emoluments
after giving the Contractor uoticc of termination; 'provided by ihelSlate loiils employees.

'8.2.2 give the Contractor aAvrilten notice specifying the Event'of . ' , . . . - *
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this 112. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contact price which 12.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least fi fteen

. would otlierwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from ...(15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, of
'tlie date of such notice until such liriie as tlic State determines that sother transfer of-any interest in this Agreement. No such
the Contractor has cured the Event of Default shall ncver-be paid assignment, delegation, or other transfer shall be effective without
to the Contractor; the written consent of the State.
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of 12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall

.  Default and set oJTagainst any other obligations the State iTiay owe constitute assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any consolidation, or a transaction or.scries of related transactions in
Event ofDcfault; and/or ^ .which a third parly, together with its affiliates, becomes the direct
8.2.4 giye the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of or indirect owner of fi fty percent (50%) or more, of the voting

"Dcfaiilt',-treal the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement sharcs or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of the
and pursue any. of its remedies at law or in equity, or both. Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of

.  • ■ Uie Contractor. • ,
9. TERNIINATION. 12.3 Nolieof the Services shall be subcontracted by llieContfaclor
9.1 Notwithsianding paragraph 8, tlic Stale may, at its'sole, without prior written notice and consent of the Stale.

. ..discretion, tenninale the Agreement'for any reason, in whole or in 12.4-Th'e Slate is entitled.to copies of-all-subcontracts and
'pan, by thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions
that the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement, contained in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it

• '9:2 Inihc event of an early termination of this Agreement forany is,.ndt a party. ' • • • „
reason other than the coinplciioh of the. Services, the Contractor _ - > .
shall, at'the Slate's discretion,.deliver to the Contracting Officer, 13.-'.1NDE1VINIFICATI0N. The Contractor shall indemnify,
not laier than fi fteen (15) calendar days after the date.'of/defend, and hold hannless,the State, its officers, and employees
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in detail from and against all actions, claims, damages, demands,
all Services'.performed, and the contract price earned,' to and judgments, fines, liabilities, losses, aiid other^expenses, including, •

.:ihcliidmg' the date of termination, In addition, at-the State's .without limitation, -reasonable attorneys' fees, arising'out of or
discretion, the Contractor shall, within fi fteen (15).calendar days, relating to this Agreement directly or indirectly arising from death,- .
of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a personal injury, property damage, . intellectual properly
transition plan for Services undcrilie Agreement. ' ■> '

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.
10.1 As used in lliis Agreement, the word "Property".shall mean
all data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, fi les,
fomiulae, sur\'cys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
reprcscniatipns. computer programs, computer, printouts, noteS;
letters; memoranda,■ papers, and do'cumenis, all whether finished or
unfinished. ■ ' '

,  infringement, or other claims asserted against the State, its officers,
or employees caused by the acts or omissions of negligence,
reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors. The Slate shall not be liable
for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under this
paragraph 1.3. Nolwitlistanding the foregoing, liothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State's
sovereign iminunily, which immunity is hereby reser\'cd to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the tcrinination
of this Agreement. . ■ • . . .

*. I ■
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" 14. INSURANCE.

'M4,i';:-The 'Conrractor shall, ai.its sole expense, .obiain. and.
'^ coniinuousiy maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor,

or assignee to obtain and maintain "in force, (he following,
•insurance: ■ . ,

-14.1 .-l' commercial general liability insurance against dl-claims of
'  bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than.

$1^000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregateior.cxccss;
and'

14.1.2 special caiise" of loss coverage fonn covering alliProper^ty
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in.an'amount not4ess;than

'. 80% of the whole replacement value of the Property.
;  'l4.2'Tlie pdliciesdescribcd in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on

pplicy.'fonns and endorsements approved for use in ilie State of
• New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued .
" by^insurcrs licensed in the State of New Hampshire.

-  '.14;3 The Contractor shall furnish, to the Contracting Officer
'identified in'block-1.9, or any successor, a certificate(s) of
insurkccforall insurance required under this Agreement. At the

■  rcqucst'of the C9ntracting Officer, or aiiy successor, the Contractor
•  shall ..provide certificate(s) of insurance for all renewal(s) of
• • insurance required under this Agreement. "Hie certificalc(s) of

insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

' 15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from,

•  . the, requirements o/ N.H. RSA chapter '281-A ("Workers'
■ Compensolion "): - ' - •• • ' -
15.2 To tlie extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of.

./ !n.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain,.and require
-  any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of
• Workers' Compensation in connection with activities which-the
person proposes to .undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Tlic

• Contractor shall furnish tlie Contracting Officer identified in block:
i.9,'or:ahy successor, .proof of Workers' Compensation i.ri the

^ mauucr described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and"any applicable.
'' "rencwal(s)Vhdreof,'.Which shall be attached and are incorporated^

-• herein by reference. The State shall'not be responsible for payment
of any Workers' Compensation premiums or for any other claim or
benefit for Contractor,, or any subcontractor or cinploycc of

:;Cdutractor,-which might arise-under applicable State.of New
' Hariipshirc Workers' Compensation jaws'in connection.with the
'rperfonnance of the Services under this Agreement.

18. AJVIENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by'ail instrument in writing signed by the parties
ihaEto^anfl/cmly .after approval of such amendment, waiver or
idischar^ciby.lhe Governor and Executive Council of'ihc Stale of.

unless no such approval is required under .the
to State law, rule or policy.

? • ' 4 ^ ' ' ' y. ' • .

a9: <CMm3E<OF»UA\y AND FORUM.

119.1111^3 Agreement'shall be goyemed, mterpreted and construed
iih-accordaiiGe^ith-the laws of tlie State of New Hampshire except
iwhere Tflie .IFederal "Supremacy clause requires otherwise. The
••wording iused .in'.this Agreement is the wording chosen by the
.paitiesitOfejqDressHheir mutual intent, and no rule of construction
'^iTHfoc applied against or-in favor of any party.
. 19.2,t Ally-actionst arising out of this'Agreement, including the^
breach or.allegedibreach thereof,-may not be submitted to binding
arbitration,' but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the ■
Merrimack County Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive jiirisdiction liiereof.' '

20. CGNFLICfTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict between-

the terms of lliis P-37 form (as-modified, in EXHIBIT A) and aiiy
other portion pf this Agreement including any attaclunenis thereto,
the terms of liie P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT)A) shall control.

. 21. THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement is being entered into for
the sole benefit of the panics hereto, and notliing herein, express or
implied,, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any natiu"c upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughbut tlie Agreement are for
-reference purposes only, and the-words contained therein shall in
no way. be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in tlie
interpretation,^ construction or meaning-of the .provisions of this
Agreement. . •

23. , .SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional 'or modifying ,
provisions set fortli in the attached EXHIBIT A arc Incorporated
Herein by reference'.'

24. F,URTHER Assurances. The Contractor, along with its
agents and affiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
additional'documents and take such further actions as may be
"reasonably required to carry out the,provisions of iliis.Agreement
and give effect to tlic transactions.coiucmp|aicd hereby.

-■ 16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A Stale's failure to enforce its rights - 25. SEVERABILltv. In the cveiit any of ihc.provisions of this
witli respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agrectncnl Agreeiiiem are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
shall not act as a waiver of the riglit of the State to later enforce any contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of

.such rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach. this Agreemciil will remain in full force and effect. • . •

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other parly shall .26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agrccnicnl, which may be
be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at ilic time of executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
mailingby certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States Post deemed an original, coiisiituies the entire agreement and

•'Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in blocks 1.2 ; understanding , between Mhe- parlies, luid supersedes all prior
• '•and 1.4, herein. • ■ > , - • ' . • " .agreements tuid undefstaudings with respect to the subject inaiterx

• ■ ■ - - hereof. .

i -.ia
•A

•i

t  : 'Page4-pf4 \ ,
Contractor Initial^

Initial - '

•4 1 ''O.* * ^ •* * y 7 • * A' ' i." ' f' • a,. .

\'r] *'* ' ^ 4. i '.4 <
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Youth Focused Trainings and Credentialing Support Partnership

EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form, P-37, General Provisions . ' , .

1.1. Paragraph 3, Effective Date/Completion of Services, is amended by deleting
subparagraph.3.3 inJts entirety and replacing it as follows:

'  3.3. Contractor must complete all Services by the'Completion bate specified
.in block 1.7. The parties may extend the Agreement for up to two (2)
additional years from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory
delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and
approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

'1.2. Paragraph 12,-Assighment/Delegation/Subcontracts, is. amended by adding
subparagraph T2.5 as follows: , ; ; ■ .

12.5. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual, conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have, written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicable, .a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective'action as necessary: The Contractor shall

■  annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate

,  subcontractor performance. . ^

.  . •' SS-2025-DBH-32-YOUTH4}1

J:"" New Hampshire Alcohol and Dftjg Abuse
Counselors Association • "•

-■'v.- . •• ',,7.14:23. . ■

. A-1.2

ir. . Page.1 of 1.

\  , • Contractor. Inilials

*lnlllal

L-.v- ; • / ' 4/21/2025
-l'. V- ■ Date •

-• r • V. . '

t
' y-
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Youth-Focused Trainings and Credentialing Support Partnership Expansion

" exhibitb:' ''V' '

, J Scope of Services
-r ^ \ - ' "I 1 . • i" '* • • .V ' '

1. Statement of Work . ' c

ti. ■ ■ the Contractor'must'plan, ■■coordinate, isand [-provide a minimum of ;18-
,, professional development training oppprtirhities, with in-person and"virtual ;

f V " attendance options. The Contractor must ensure trainings include information■
■  . 01^ addressing and ehgag'ing'.with youth andjyoungadults aged 16 through 25,

■  as appropriate, and include; but are not limited :to, the following topics;
■ ■■ _ ' 1.1.1. Opioid and stimulant use prevention strategies. ■

,  ■ 1.1.2. Treatment practices and intervention strategies for individuals with an
ppiod use disorder or stiniulant use disorder (StimUD).

■  '1.1.3. Addressing complex needs of . individuals with, StimUD. including
.  .. .. . -''addressing violenpeand psychosis/ - ' .

.1.1.4. Assessing and treating co-occurring stimulant use and mental health,
disorders. '

■. 1.1.5. Behavioral'health needs of linderserved communities.

"  .1.1.6. . Understanding and navigating substance use disorder and pregnancy
.  . T ■ for peer recovery support workers. .

- , , ■ "1.1.7. Care coo_rdihation, care planning, and case management standards
■  :,7 ■ ofpractice. ' * : . '-V , , '

"  '1.1.8. Contingency management standards of practice and coaching
;  strategies. ■ ■■ ■ .

•f,2. The-Contractor must ensure services aje available statewide."
T;i3. "The Contractor must ensure the'seryices are made available-to substance.- .

'  misuse supports and services providers, primary care providers, mental '
,  health care providers," first responders, corrections personnel, educators, -

community health workers, doulas, public health personnel, faith leaders, arid
other com'munity lea'ders./s .

1.4. , The Contractor mustensufe training sessions are consistent with the required. ■
professional standards and cor:e .competency needs of the workforce which ■ .
include, but are not limited to, relevant training for:

1.4.1. Certified Prevention Specialists (CPS).
1.4.2. Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselors (LADC).

1.4.3. Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselors (MLADC).
1.4.4. Certified Recovery Support Workers (CRSW).

1.5. The Contractor must: provide training participants with training mate^fi<iand
Continuing Education Hours, as applicable to the training audienc; its ,

•. I

'  ; j. ■ SS'26?^DBH-32-YOUTH-01 - , B-2.T,.;. ^ ' Contractor initials^ .
'.'"-i -V 'New Hampshire Alcohol and-Orug '; r-sy-'i". <. '■ ' "T 4/21/2025 ^

.-'•.jy.,',',.: I,AbuseCounseiors Association -r' ./ *Page,1 of7}.^^. - I
-'jji 'vv' • • T-'-,- " . .V .V :• »
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services,
Youth-Focused Trainings and Credentialing Support Partnership Expansion

EXHIBIT B .

certification/licensing needs; ensure .training is designed for different adult
learning, styles arid levels of knowledge; land is provided using'integrated,
eLearning tools, when appropriate. ' • '

1.6. . The Contractor must collaborate with the (Department to identify and engage
,  presenters to.deliver training opportunitiesJdentified above.

1.7.' The Contractor must collaborate with the Department to ensure each training'
event.is evaluated in'accordance with each accrediting body, and-other
criteria as appropriate, that includes, but is not limited to:

1.7.1. Collecting and analyzing participant evaluation responses'for each
■  training session..

1..7.2. -Compiling and analyzing aggregate data, from evaluation responses
monthly. - '

1.7.3. Sharing evaluation data, monthly, with the Departmeot.to ensure the
program is meetings its goals and'for continuous quality improvement
of the training program.

1.8. ■ The Contractor must include trainings'identified through this Agreement on
the Contractor's website, wv^.nhadaca.org, which must include: .

■  1.8:1., A calendar of training events offered or sponsored: ,

1.8.2. . The abilityTor participants to.register for training.
-  ■ 1,8.3.- In-person or remote access,-to all training opportunities offered-

through this Agreement,' as.applicable. '

,  1.9. The Contractor, may collect-registration'fees. from training participants, for
.  ■ , training expenses, that exceed the,amount'funded by the Departrnent. The.'

,  Contractor must ensure* a minimurn" of '10% of revenue 'generated from •
registration fees collected are reinvested to enhance the training program, as

,  approved-by the Department. ' ' ; "

" -1.1G. The Contractor must expand support and'resources, offered through the , ■
'.Contractor's existing Credentialling Support Partnership (CSP) pfograni. The,

' / ' ■ Contractor must ensure program participation addresses LADC and CRSW'
'  supervision needs. CRSW application review, and CRSW exam preparation

and includes, but is not limited to, responding to general credentialing questions
■  and facilitating CRSW study groups, CRSW and LADC supervision sessions,
and CRSW and LADC supervision mentorship sessions.

1.11. The Contractor must include information about trainings and CSP programming
available through this Agreement, in promotional material when exhibiting at
workforce events in NH to prornote careers'in behavioral .health. .

1.12. The Contractor rnust participate in meetings with the Department on a "gu^rterly-
contractbasis, or as otherv/ise requested by-;the. Department to enhance

t /
SS-2025-b8H-32-YOUTH-01 ' B^2:1 ' V ' ' Contractor Initials

NewHampshire Alcohol and Drug.- -V;.' ' ■4/21/2025';'
.- ' A^se.Counselors Associkion . ■ Page2of7 - - Date ■ • ' :

i
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oanBiTB- ■

management, improve ;TesulJs,-and adjust.program delivery and policy based
on successful outcomes. ■ ^ - ' . '

'■ 1.13. The Contractor must develop and.siibTnit a VVioriktRlan. to the Department, ■
utilizing a Department-appT©wfidfen]iiiaat,thal«iEtai!sitiiaining and CSP planning,, ■
development, and scheduUntginrafiiijaes,.wittaira3D working, days of the contract
effective date. - ' / .

T.14. Reporting Requirements" .

1.14.1.. The Contractor-must provide writtenjTTionthly progress reports to the
Department, by the TS'^ wortdng daybf the following month, regarding
accomplishment of contract goals and performance measures. The

.Contractor must ensure ireports include, but are not limited to;

:1.14.1.1./ A summary-Of-the work performed, during the previous
month. . " ' '

1.14.1.2. Training, data, including number of trainings offered
during the previous month; number of attendees per
training; attendee job title/position per training; scheduled
trainings for the following month; and a summary of

,  training evaluatidn results from services provided during
Uhe previous morith.'

T.14;1-,3. 'CSP' -Program 'data, including number and .type of
' ^ assistance andj'/support; identified in Section 1.10, , -

.  " requested and provided; number of attendees; and
program participant credentials, as applicable.

.s

1-.15. Performance-Measures ' • •

1.15.1. The Contractor, must collect a'completed evaluation sheet from no
^  * ■ less than 85% of participants who attend a training event.

.  1.15.2. The Department will monitor perfornriance of the contract by trainee
^  ̂ satisfaction survey-results that reflect an 85% or higher, rating of '

.  ' 'meeting the participant's needs as identified in post-event trainee. ,
evaluation results submitted.-

1.15.3. The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics
to the Department in a format specified by the Department.

,1.16. Contract End-of-Life Transition Services

1.16.1. .General Requirements

1,.16.1.1, If applicable, upon early termination or expiration of the
Agreement the parties agree to cooperate in good faith to ■
effectuate a:secure transition of the services ("TjBqaiiion

lt(^d. if•  ■' ' Services';) fronh the,Contracto.r to the Departrrie
•SS-2025-DBH-32rYOUTH-oT\ V . ' . - • . Contractor Inilials

.  .. '''v.vNew Hampshire Alcohol and Drug-;. . . ' . ■ "• ; 4/21/2025
'  . /-Aliuse Counselors Association yr. , , ^ ^ ;*'F^age;3of_7^^-' ; •/.r* V-' ' • ' , . Date '
i" ; ' -■ '''.r .- •; ■
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EXHIBIT B :

V  . ■/, " . •' applicable, the ;new''Contractor'("Recipient").engaged "by." ' \ ;
.  the Department.toiassufnaeithe services. Ninety"(90) days ;.. '

prior to the end-of the leontract or unless otherwise
specified by theiBepariment, the Contractor must begin -
working with the Department and if applicable, the
Recipient.to developiaData transition Plan (DTP). The'V ;

■ Department- shall/.tprowide. rthe DTP template to the ■ -j
Contractor. - ' ' ' ■ , ■ -

1.16.1.2.- The Contractor must assist the Recipient,- in connection '
with the transition "from,the performance of Services by.

.  the Contractor and its End Users to the performance of-
such Services.- This may include assistance with the

_  secure transfer of ^irecords (electronic and hard-copy),
■ transition of historical data (electronic and hard copy), the -
transition of'any such Service from the hardware,

"  • software, network and telecommunications equiprnent
■ ^ and internet-related information technology infrastructure , ■ '

("Internal .IT Systems")' of Contractor to the Internal IT
;  Systems of the Recipient and cooperation with and ' "
-  • assistance to any .third-party consultants engaged by, " , ■ ;

, Recipientjn connection with the Transition Services. .

1."18.1'.3. ■ If a system, database, hardware, software, ^and/or
■  software licenses-(Toolsy was purchased or created to - ' ' -

•  manage, track, , 'and/or- store Department Data in
, '-Telatioriship to this contract said Tools will be inventoried

and returned.tb the.Department, along, with the inventory.
-  document, once , transition of ■Department data is, ^ ;

complete. ' ' , - • ' ■ .
1.16.1.4. The internal planning of the Transition Services by the

Contractor arid , its "End Users shall be provided to the "
.  7. ' Dspsrtmerit and ;if applicable the Recipient, in, a .-timely

-mariner. Any such Transition Services shall be,deemed
^ ^ to be Services for purposes of this Agreement.

1-.16.1.5. In the event the data Transition extend beyond the end of.
the Agreement, " the Contractor agrees that the '
Information Security Requirements, and if applicable, the

, T ■ Department's Business Associate Agreement terms and
'  , conditions remain in effect until the Data Transition is

accepted as complete by the Department. ■

,, " . V ' 1.16.1.6.- In the event the Contractor has.comingled Department
• v " ' . Data and the destruction or Transition of said daf^lS^hot,

>  ' '■ ■■ feasible,: the Departnrient and Contractor ,willt|&ntly
SS-2p25-DBH-32VOUtH:0'l: y- ..T'. Contractor InilialsS . - - -i" -

TV / ^'cohol and Drug*^ • i-'■ .•'' -v'. ' . *'4/21/2025 ■ ^ ' •
Tv '- ' ' Abuse.Counselore Associatiqri ' ■ ;/ - ' ' ■ . Page4'dfJ,' , T -''.-f c, . , . ; Dale ' ' '■ ..
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■ V New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
;  ̂ Youth-Focused Trainings and Credentialing Support Partnership Expansion

"EXHlBmB- '.V'- '" ■

r  ' evaluate ■ Tegulatoryj and professipnal standards ̂'fpr
■  ; • '* "retention fequinements;prior'to destruction, refer to the

-hj' terms and, conditions bfithe' Department's DHHS/
1, ; ! > ' • Information'Security';Requirements Exhibit. ... ■

'  -^/.V 1.16.2/" , ' .Completion of Transition^Se'rvices ■ , , , . : ■/■
'1.16.2.1. . ':Each'service 5on .-transition phase .shall be. deemed

"  ' ■ completed (and the" transition process finalized) at the
; ■ ' " end of 15 business days after the'product, resulting from

■  - '- v' . ■_ the Service,' is delivered to the'Department and/or, the.
.  , . Recipient in accordance with the mutually agreed upon

■  , ■ ■ . Transition plari, unless within,said 15 business day .term
/, " . the Contractor notifies the Department of 'an issue

, ^ . / ■ ' requiring'additional time to complete said product. ■ ■ - '
'  ' '■ , 1.16.2.2. . Once all parties agree the data has been migrated the

. Contractor will have"30 days to destroy the data per the
;  '■ '■ /terms and conditions, of the Department's Information

■ : ' SecurityRequirements Exhibit. .
:  ■. ■ ,/.■. ^ -/l.ie.S. /Disagreement pyer Trarisition Services Results '
^  . /. ./ C -r - ' 1.16.3.1. ' vin" the-event, the Department is not satisfied with the

'Vr 1'/', ■ ' "/results of the Transition Service,' the Department shall
/'V" . . ' V . ". notify the Contractor, in writing; stating the reason for, the

"V lack of satisfaction within'15 business days of "the filial;  ■ ■ ! y /. ^ product prat any time during the data.Transition process.
.. ■ .. The'Parties shall discuss the actions tp be taken" to

/; ; " * ■/-' - ■ ■ ■ .resolve the disagreement or issue. If an agreement is not
"'y/'.''/-;/ reached/at any time'the Department shall-be. entitled to

,  - ' , ' ■ . ,/ initiate actions' in accordance with the Agreement.
2: Exhibits Incorporated . . V

■ ^*,'2.1.- The Contr'actor must comply vyith aU'Exhibit D Federal Requirements-,.which
-are attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein. '

2. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes
3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future, state or federal

legislation or court orders may have' an impact on the Services
■ described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities

and expenditure requirementS'under this Agreeimenl so as to achieve
.  i ' ' compliance therewith. - '

, / / 3.2. Federal Civil Rights Laws Corfipliahce: Culturally and LingiMStroajly ,
'./ ./ .-y ^ Appropriate Programs and.Services . :(J^' -

^  . /■B-2.1, . «//.. Contractor Initials " .'J''
"'-V "4/-/' . ' s 4/21/2025; ■ - _ /■J  ' Abuse Counselors AsVociation ^ • Page 5 of 7 '• '• '• »; '• ' - , ' "• -• O.,' - -
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EXHIBIT B

=  . 3.2;1. ^ The Cqnttactpr must submit:.. . ^ ■ ■ ' ■ ,> - .

;  A'detailed description of the language assistance
■  /'i ■".-■services, within ten-(16) days of the Effective Date of the

'  y ;■ ■■ '■ Agreement, to be provided to ensure rrieaningful access
■ \ ^ to programs and/or services to Individuals with limited

.  • • • ■ English proficiency; individuals who are deaf or have
,  • . V." \ . . . hearing .loss; individuals who are blind or have 'low '

■  ' ' vision; and individualswho have speech ch'allenges: -

-'V. ■; V' ■, '3.2:1.2. ' . A written attestation, within 45 days of the Effective pate
/ ' • of '.the ••Agreement, and- annually thereafter, that all

\  r personnel involved the provision of services to
■  ■//_ • 'individuals under-this Agreement • have completed,
\  . within the last-42 months, the Contractor Required

' Training Video "on Civil Rights-related Provisions in
r.- , OHMS Procurernent Processes, which is accessible oh

,  the Department's ^ website
■  . (https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/doing-business-dhhs/civil-

'  - ■ " fight-compliance-dhhs-vendors); and
\  3.2.1.3. ■ • ..The Department's Federal Civil Rights "Compliance.

,  ..Checklist within ten (10) days of the Effective Date of
^  the-Agreement.-The' Federal Civil Rights• Compliance'"

Checklist must have been completed within the last 12
"  ■ " months and is accessible on the Departrifient's website

!  V . (https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/doing-business-dhhs/ciyil-'
,  \ . -T right-cornpliance-dhhs-vendqrs).7 "

'  • S.S.ir'.Credits arid Copyright Ownership . . . .
■  V / , 3.3!l.. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and,other

■  ̂ - , ■ . ■ ^ ' materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the'
" ■" '^services of the Agreement must include the following statement, "The ,

V ■ V , " ■ preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
.  • Contract with the istate of New^Hampshire, Department of Health and

'  Human Services; with funds provided " in part by the State of New
'  ' ' • Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or

required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

3.3.2. All materials produced or purchased underthe Agreement must have
prior approval from the Department before 'printing, production,

,  distribution or use.

,  3.3.3. The Department must retain, copyright ownership for any and all
.  original .materials ■ produced, Jricluding, .but not limited tO/^ports;

' : • . , ■ ' protocols, guidelines, brochures,-posters, arid resource direc;t(^ji^.
■  : .-. A SS-2025-DBH-32-YOUTH-01 ".J- ,, -7. ' ■■ B^2.i.-' ContractorInilials^
A, .7 7 ; ■ 7 ' New Hampshire Alcohol,and Drug • 4/21/2025
■'j-'r. lAbuseCounseib'rs Association ,• . j Page6of 7. ,^ ^ete ^
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'■ -EXHlBltB' ■-

.  ■ ■ - 3,3.4. ' The Goritractor must notT^oduceany materials produced under the
Agreement'without priprawnitteiaapprovai from the Departrnent.;

■4. 'Records' ' --T ■ ^ ■ - 'V;
.  4.1. The Contractor must keep recordsthaf roc'lude, but'are not limited to:
.  - ■ ■4.1.1'. Books, redords, documents and-?oth^r "electronic or physical data • .

" _ evidencing and reflecting all costs an'd other expenses incurred by the
' Contractor in the performance of the. Contract, and all income received

or collected by the Contractor. ■ • \ •

y  ■ 4.1.2. AH records must be maintairie'd in accordance with, accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such

'  ■ costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and '
-  to include, without limitation. alMedgefs. books', recor^ds, and original;

'  ■ ■ evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,

• ; ' labor-time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
.  ̂ the Department. . • " ! . "

4.2.
'  , * 1

4^3.
I  >

I

During tha.term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereunder, the •,
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services; and
any of their designated representatives must, have'access to all reports and

■ records maintained pursuant, to .the'-'Agreement for purposes of audit,- .
examination, excerpts and transcripts.

If," upon further review, the Department must disallow any expenses claimed by
the Contractor as costs hereunder, the-Departrnent retains th'e right, at its
discretion,'to'deduct the amount of such.expenses as-are,, disallowed or,to.,
recover.such-sums.from the Contractor." ^ :• .

"V. ".i . *

:-"tf.^V''-SS-2025-DBH-32-YOUTH-pi.;- " B-2.%
■'.t

UK
'Contrador-lnitials " ' • •'

■ :Ne"w Hampshire AicoKol and Dmg - ' v. v ^. • " • ' -i
"r .'-'Abuse Counselors Association- .r, " ;• ^ ^ rT,.
'■ vf;.- • -1 ^ "T. iv' --', ' " Vr- '.f r •-
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EXHiBire ,

Payment Terms

:  - . '.I- . This Agreement is funded by: .-..v ,T' ; . ' .

1.1. 100% .Federal funds through,thevStatelOpidi'd-Response (SOR) grant,'
,  awarded'by the DHHS:Substance Abuse^and■Mental Health Services .

■  1 Administration (SAMHSA),.ALN 93.7'88.,asawarded on: ■

.  1,1.1. September 24.-2024, FAIN H7gm3B7843. - ' '
'  "2. For the purposes of this Agreement theiDepartmerit'has identified:

:  2.1. The Contractor as a Subrecipient, based oh criteria specified in 2 CFR
200.331: .

, ; 2.2. The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR.§200.332.
T, 2.3! The "Indirect Cost Rate.for this ^^greement in the attached Budget ..

■  ̂ * Sheet(s). ■ ' '
/3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual allowable

■ expenditures incurred under this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
. , - ■ the approved line items, as specified in Exhibits C-1, Training and Credentialing

■  Support Budget. '

•  . ! ' ' 4. '* The Contractor shall subrhit an invoice with supporting backup doctimentatipn
:  in aform and secure manner satisfactory to the Departrhent bythe 15th working

'Cj. ' day of the"following, month, which identifies and requests, reimbursement for
authorized expenses incurred in the prior.month.-The Contractor shall ensure ,

1; each invoice: , ^ ,

;  \ 4.1.- Is completed, 'dated and returned to the Department in order to initiate
'  ■ payment. Invoices shall be.net any.other revenue received towards the :

-• ' services billed in fulfillment'of this agreernent; ■ ' , . "
■  . */' 4.2. ' Has backup documentation, including:

>  ' ■ '4.2.1'., General Ledger.-showirig all revenue, and expenses- for . the,
/. >■■;' ' ■' ' . ' ' . ' ' . contract; , , ■ . ' • V " ! - •

4.2.2! Tirhesheets and/or time cards that support the hours employees:'
worked for wages reported under this contract;

4.2.2.1. Per 45 CFR Part'75.430(i)(1) Charges ■ to, Federal
awards for salaries and wages must be based,on
records that accurately reflect the work performed; and

4.2.2.2. Attestation and time "tracking templates, which are
•  , available to the Department upon request;

■  4.2.3. Invoices supporting expenses reported which do not include
■unallowable expenses, per federal grant'guidelines, includtf>gi»' ,

-• SS-2025-DBH-32-YOUTH-01 J ' C-2.1. .* , Contractor Initials • ^
Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse ■ 4/21/2025

Counselors Association ' • " ' ' ' ^ x-'.Page.l of 3.' • > " • , ' ' Date-'. . . •
^  ■ ' 4 -; ■ , . - : 4 vr . 1 t
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- ■ EXHIBmC

■  'v ■ v", ■ ' 4.2.3.1'. SOR 4 Notice of Funding Opportunity, ■ page 31:
.. •- .. '• ■ > i;. " ■ ,, , https://www.samhsa.aov/sites/default/files/qrants/pdf/f

■  , ■ * ■ ' - " v-2024-sor-nofo'.:pdf:and ' ' ' .

;■ , , . 1 "4.2.3.2; -SAMHSA's StandardsTor. Financial Management and
-  Standard Funding jRestnctions, page 36:' FY 2024

V.;/' - Substance Abuse and ■ Mental Health 'Services.
■  ■ Administration MfSAMHSAI ' Notice of Funding

V h.' ■" ■ - ■ Opportunity CNGFO) Application Guide.^ •
:  4.2.4. Receipts for expenses within the applicable state fiscal year;

'  ■- 4.2.5. , Cost "center reports; - . ■' ; -
4.2.6. Profit and loss report; / . " • ' . ^ ' .

■  - ; ;:4!2.7. Remittance Advices from'4hei^insurances billed." Remittance'
' Advices do not need to'be supplied with the invoice, but should

be retained to be available upon request;

4.2.8. Information requested by the Department verifying allocation or
offset based on third party revenue received;"and

4.2.9. Summaries of client services revenue and operating revenue
and other financial information as requested'by the'Department.

4.3. Is assigned, /an. .electronic -.signature, and is emailed- to
invoicesforcontracts@dhhs.nh.qov or mailed to: '

M

It

"Financial Manager
■  Department of Health and Hunian'SeiYices ^ , '

J  /' -105 Pleasant Street ■ ■ ,■
Concord, NH 03301

"5.; 'The Departrhent shall make payments- to the Contractor within thirty (30);'
.  ; • . ■ ,j calendar days only upon receipt and approval of the submitted invoice and

'  required supporting documentation. • ; ■ ■

6.'; . The final Invoice and 'any required supporting documentation shall be due to '
the Departrhent no later than- forty (40). ,calendar days after the -contract .

''>completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7"
Completion Date,

7. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes .
limited to adjusting direct and indirect cost amounts within the price limitation
betweeri budget class lines, as well as adjusting encumbrances between State

• Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, may be made by written agreement of
both parties, without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council,
if needed and justified. •

.  i... . ■ . • ■- ' . ' . I, . ,

'■ - /, .hV.',',,SS-2P25-DBH.32-YOUTH-01 ' C.2.1 ' / Contractor Initials,  _ - y: _• S ^ y ■ . .
,, //'. New.Harnpshire'Alcohoiand-DrugAbu^' ■'

'Counselors Association" ,, , •' 't r'P>ge2of3 '; i- f ■Date'-_

(A \
.  , ;• '".V

, t' V H ---t-
^  .-/■ .- .4/21/2025 ; ^ ^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
;;' : ■ -Youth Focused Trainings and Credentialing Support Partnership

<  • ^ - EXHIBIT C

^ 1-
.  'i

r*--

.. ̂  ..T-

' 'V

r  ■ -■

V

' '

8;.. Audits. ■ - ■ ■ ■ ' • ■ ' ■
8:1v ■ ; The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov.

'  if any of the following conditions-exist: . - i- - -
'  " 8.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor" .is subject to a Single Audit

pursuaritto2CFR200-.501*Audit,Requirements. .
■  ; '8-1.2. .Condition' B-The Contractor is subject to'audit pursuant to the* '•

'  ! ' ' , requirements of NH RSA 7:28, lll-b.
f. ^ ^ • . . ' *. * .1

:  ■ .8.1.3. Condition C-'The Contractor is a public comp'any and required
'  by the U.S. Securities-and Exchange Commission (SEC)

. V- regulations to submit an annual financial audit.
8.2. . If Condition A exists; the Contractor shall submit an annual Single

:  : . ; : ' Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
'  " , ' ^ to dhhs.act@dhhs.nhVgov within -120 days after'the close of^the"

-  . Contractor's fiscal, year,' conducted in accordance with, the
requirements of- 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform ,

■  . Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and. Audit
Requirements for Federal av/ards.

.  8.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
,  and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor

i-; -T . . shall submit quarte'dy progress reports. on, the status-of:
j;,- ' implementation of the corrective action plan.'

.  8.3. . If Condition B "or Condition C exists.'the Contractor, shall submit'an
■ V , . . . ' annual financial audit-performed by an-indepehderit CPA within 120
T  ■ -days after the close ;oftheXdntfactbr's fiscal year. '

The •Contractor, . regardless of . ■the-funding source'and/or whether-
•T ' ■ Conditions A, B, or'C exist/may be required to subrhit annual financial

'.audits performed by , an " independent CPA upon request by. the.
,  ' Department. , • /; v- ^ .

8.5;', ': In addition'to, .and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Agreement," it is understood/and'agreed by the Contractor that the

■  Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
'  and shall return to the Department all payments made under the

Agreement to which exception has;been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception, within sixty (60) days.

9. If applicable, the Contractor must request disposition instructions from the
Department for any equipment, as defined in 2 CFR 200.313, purchased

.  .using funds provided under this Agreement, including information
technology, systems. ■

[M,. .
"v- : , • . •-C-2.1 . • . .-x'- Contractor initials-- ' ——

'• ..-i'V ' ' ' • ■ ,r ' , ' • %. 'j,, • .
.  V'" New/ Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse x , .' ' '' • " •'' 4/21/2025

'  Cpunselors'Msociatiori/' ,.'j •' ■
'  -eni-': ' V;

. .. "SS-2025-PBrt:32;YOUTH-6l . •, .-x' Conlraclorlnit.ials
'  1' ; ./'' ' '• ' 'v i -1-;

-Ti;: ?. ;. x '. ■ ^ - / ^- 4/21/2025 •
•  ■ ' Date • ■' v.",

'•> . ' " '. I.'.
.  ' ' • . • .4 , >
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E)^ibil C-1, Training and Credentialling Support Budget

•'>

New.Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services ^

Contractor Name: New HampshireOrug Abuse and'Coun'selore Aisociatidn
' j'"' " . Budget Request for: Training and Credentialling Support . • • .
"  Budget Period: 5/1/25-9/29/26 •

- U -v. .

I  "" p

5/1/2025-6/30/2025 '  7/1/25-9/29/25 • 9/30/25-6/30/26 ^" ■ 7/1/26-9/29/26 ^

Line Item Training .  . CSP Training CSP Training CSP • Training CSP

1. • Salary & Waoes $2,656 $12:855 .  ' -$4,061 $20,385 .  $10,575 $63,122 , $3,525 $20,921

2. Frinoe Benefits $584 $2,828 $893 $4,485 $2,327 $13,887 $776 $4,603

3. Consultants $500 $500 $4,000 $1,503 -  $11,000 . $3,900 $2,400 $1,200

A. .Equipment.
Indirect cost rate cannot be applied to
equipment costs per 2 CFR 200.1 and
Aooendlx IV to 2 CFR 200.

SO >$0 $0 $0 .$0 .. $0
'  ' . 1
'  ' , ■ '$0 $0

5.(a1 SuDOlies - Educational =  ■ . . - - so :■ ,;'$0 -  . ^•$215 $900 .. " $1:100 $1,500 ■  $378 -  -• ' : $302

S.fbl' SuDolies - Lab so -  • $0 .  $0 - $0 $0 $0 .  . $0 .  . $0

5.(cl SuDDlies - Pharmacy -  so ■$o *$0 $0 $0 $0 ■  ' . $0 $0

5.(d1 SuDdies - Medical so $0 •  . $0 $0 $0 $0 :  $0 $0

S.fel Suodies - Office -$145 $142 •  - $256 $500 -  ' ' $634 $1,082 . $59 :  . $500
6. Travel * • . • ' $25 •  -$25 $49 $1,999 -  $150 - $9,000 . ::_^:-^^-$50 .  ...1. . .. $200
7.' '.Software - SO $0 -  $0 •  $0 $120 ■  • -• $120 $0
8. fal Other • Marketinq/Communications .  $57 - $143 $86 $215 $258 :  $645 $86 —r • $215
8. fbl Other - Education and Trainina . SO •  $0 .  $0 $1,200 -  $0 $1,500 ■ . , $0 $900

8. (cl Other • Other (soecify below) ■  so .  $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 - $0

..V Other (Leaminq Management System)
,  . $152 $180 -  , - " $228 " . • $570 -r ; , $684 ■  $i-.fio $228 $570

does'not aoDlv)' . .SO V  $0 .. $0 $2,500 • . :^.-:;4.i,200 ,.._|8iOW $0 $537

- Other /Apifanaoed if and Data Security) "$131 " " • $328 ■ ' , 5197 '$492 ,  ':^"-.$591 ■  ■ $^l477 ■  il9? $492

'  Other (SOR Terqetted) SO $0 '  $760 $1,000 $1,000 .. - JS.oOp .  .-u:. to .  „$1,000
Other (Subscriptions/Memtxrshios) .  -so $0 .  $0 $480 -  - . $0 $1:970 .  $0 $120
Other (Room Rental) SO $0 $0 SO .  $0 ,  $0 ... . . $0 $0
Other (olease specify) .  SO . $0 •  - , . • $0 $0 .  : $0 - $0 -$0 -  ' $0

9. 'Subrecloient Contracts SO $0 $0 $30,000 $0 $60,000 $0 $12,000

Total Direct Costs- $4,250 $17,001 $10,745 $66,229 .$29,639 $169,913 $7,699 $43,560

Total indirect Costs $637 $2,549 $1,611 $9,559 .  $4,265 $24:736 $1,154 $6,453

Subtotals - ^  $4,887 $19,550 $12,356 $75,788 $33,904 $194,649 $8,853 $50,013
TOTAL $  400,000

■SS-2025.'DBH-32.YOUTH-01 -

Contractor Inlials:

Date:
4/21/202S
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^  . New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
.  V i . Exhibit D -Federal Requirements

, SECTION S: CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREEIWGRKpLaCE REQUIREMENTS

V  v r ' _ The.Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Generarprovisions agrees to comply with the provisions"
'ofSections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988-.(Pub. L 100-690, Title, V, Subtitle 0:41
U.S.C.-701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11'and t.12 of the General Provisions execute the foilowing'Gertification: -. :

.  •' , ' ' • ^ ■ ■ ■

' ALTERt^ATIVE I - FOR CONTf^CTORS OTHERTHAN INDIVIDUALS .

;US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES-fCpNTRACTORS ' _
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION-CONTRACTORS , ••• - • >' •

.  US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE- CONTf^CTORS v

ThiS'certification is required by the regula'tionslimplemeriting Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
■' Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690,.Titie V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 70,1 et seq.). The January 31,

•  1989 regulations were amended and published as Part ll'of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
.. 21681-21691), and require certification by contractors (and by inference, sub- contractors), prior to

•  .award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace! Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation provides that
a'contractor (and by inference, sub-contractors) that is a State may elect to make one certification to the
Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for each Agreement during the federal fiscal

• year covered by the certification. The certificate set but belbvir is a material representation of fact upon
. which reliance is placed when the agency awards the'Agreerpent. False certification or violation of the.

"  certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or- termination of Agreements, or
^ government wide suspension or debarment; Contractors using this form should send it to:

Commissioner
' NH Department of Health and.Human Services ;• ' . . .. ! ' • ' !

-• . -129 Pleasant Street • ,
^Concord, NH 03301-6505 -. .

-  n

i-' .The Contractor certifies that it will orwill coritinue'to provide a drug-free workplace by:

,  r : ' /V". -. ••I.l. Publishing a statement notifying.employees that'the unlawful manufacture, distribution, ■
'  • r dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Contractor's
; V. ' '".'i!'. S •- workplace arid'specifying the actions that wi.li'be taken against employees for violation of such '

> • •! • prohibition;

■  1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness"prograrn,to inform employees about " •
-. L ■ 1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; . "

^ ■ Vv • 1.2.2. The Contractor's policy of rhaintaining a drug-free workplace; .
'  ■ ':i.2.3. . 'Any available drug counseling, rehabilitatlon,.and employee assistance programs; and

.  1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring'
■  In the .workplace;

■  ' 1,3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the
Agreement be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

.  1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) ttiat, as a condition of
employment under the Agreement, the employee will " . . .

1.4.1. 'Abide by the terms of the statement; and • ' ! ' , • '
•' •.I.4.2."- Notify the empioyer in writing of his.or'her'convictipn for a violation of a ciimlhal djjijfl

•!V ' . . • statute .occurring in the workplace no later than five.calendar days after suchjc^Viction;

'Its 'iv1.6/23 ' ' V ' .ExhibitD' ,,-". COntractdr's-lnitiajs
^  * Federalral Requirements'r, " . . 'f Date^/^V'^Q^^

' ■ p^e of"1 a ^ ^

t  ; \ 1

' ' ' '■ V . , ■ "-tr I' . . .. , , ^ -
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- New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

'  ' ! Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

.  ' T ' - 1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar daysiafterTOcelving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 frorn an employee or othervvise receiving actual notice of such conviction.

'  « - Employers of convicted employees must provide notice,mduding.position title, to every contract
. ' ■ . ' ' officer on whose contract activity the convicted employee .was workings unless the Federal • ,

-  agency has designated a central pointJbntherreceiptGfsuchmotices.iNotice shall include the •
^  identification number(s) of each affected Agreement; _• •

.  ' . 1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within;30;calendartJaysi>T'peDeivihg notice under -..
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee whbiissoconvicted

.  -- ^ . ,/ 1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel actiGmagainstisuchahemployee, up to and including
termination,wnsistentwiththeVequirementsof:theRehabiiitationActof1973,as . '.

'  amended; or'' ' - "

1.6.2r Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily-nra drug abuse assistance or
.  rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local health,

.  law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

..f'" 1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue, to maintain a^drug-free workplace through implementation
'  of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2,1.3, 1.4, 1:5. and i:6; ' '

.. _ 2.'- The Contractor may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done
•  ; in connection with the specific Agreement..

^  Place of Performance (street address, city,'county, state, zip code) (list each location)

i  . ••• , i."
• I t r '

r  •

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

I'" ' ' •/. •

-  ̂ ^■^■;^vi;6/23 ? . ;
i-« - ■

■  ''' V rh ^ '

Exhibitp ■ ^ , " ^Contractor's Initials ■
^Federal,Requirements .. • Oate^HIZH®!?

•  '• . ■ -'.^<-Page2'pf-io:- '.A- V V - .
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Exhibit D - Federal Requirements.:

SECTION B: CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING -

- The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on.Lobbying,

;  and Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352), and further agrees to have the-Contractor's
'  representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12of theiGeneral Provisions execute the .following

1 ' Certification: .

:  ;US DEPARTMENt OF HEALTH AND.HUMAN SERVICES -iGGNTRACTORS
US'DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE -CONTRACTORS

Progranis (indicate applicable program covered): \ .
, *temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV^A ' . ' • ;

, Xhild Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D .
*Social Services Block Grant Program under fltle XX , , ' ' .

- "Medicaid program under Title XIX ' ' . • ' , - • . .
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV ' '

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1- No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
.  any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a

Member of Congress", an officer ,or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of - "
" Congress in connection.with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal,-
amendment, or rnodification of any Federal contr'act, loan, or cooperative agreement.(and by
specific mention sub-contractor). • - v " ' • . " .

2. If.any funds other than Federal appropriated funds*"have been paid or will be paid to any'person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member, of Congress,

.  ' an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of .a Member of Congress in connection With
•this Federal contract, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub- contractor), the

.  ■ ^undersigned shall.complete and submit Standard Form LLL,'(Disclosufe Forrn to Report Lobbying,' .
'  in accordance with its instructions, see https;//omb.report/icr/201009-0348-022/doc/20388401 • •

3. vThe undersigned shall require that the.language of this certification bejncluded in the award
- " -document for sub-awards at all tiers (Including subcontracts, and contracts under grants, loans, and

..qboperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose .accordingly.. -

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or
entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31,-U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file,
the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than
$100,000 for each such failure.

r.

. v1 6/23-- - ■ .  • • " Exhibit D '.  Contractor's Initials'
(A ,

*_ v \.' , Federal.Requirements v. D'ate^/?V^Q^5

;■ V Page''.3'of 10.'.j V
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SECTION C: GERTIFICATibN REGARDINGDEB«RMEWT..SUSPENS10N'AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS . ,

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of theiEeraral^xoVisrons agreesttoicomply with the provisions'
, of Executive Office of the President. Executive Order-^12549and 12689'and.45 CFR Part 76 regarding
. bebarment.'Suspension, and Other ResponsitjilityMattejs,aiad,further;agrees to have the Contractor's
- representative, as identified Jn Sections 1.11 and1.12 T)fthefGeneral'Provisions execute the following
-Certification;- .. , ; i '

-  INsfRUGTIONS'FORCERTIFICAti'ON'/ - ; '
1. ' By signing and submitting this.Agreement,jtheprospectiwe.primary"participant is providing the

•  • certification set out,below. . ' - n- ; * - . . '

2., The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in
denial of participation in this covered transaction. If.necessary, the prospective participant shall
subrhit an explanation of vvhy it cannot provide thecertification. The certification or explanation will
be considered in connection with the NH Department.ofiHeaIth and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the. prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation

• 'r; - in this transaction.. \

, 3. The certification in this clause Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
' ■. -when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective

primary participant knowingly rendered ah erroneous certification,"in addition to other remedies
" ' available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terrnlnate this transaction for cause or default.

^  .4.-, The prospective primary participant shall provide'immediate written notice.to the DHHS agency to
■ whom this Agreement Is subrnitted if at any.time the prospective primary participant learns that its;

'  :• . certification was errorieous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
•  clrcurhstances. . ' .' -

■5. . The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible.'! "lower tier covered "
i transaction;" "participant." "person," "primary qovered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and ^

'  "voluntarily'excluded,'', as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and ,
. •* Coverage sections of the rules implementihg'Executive-Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See '

■ https://www.govinfo.gov/app/details/CFR-2004-title45-vol_i/CFR-20b4-title45-vol1-part76/context.
V- •, 6: ;■ The prospective primary participant agrees l5y submitting this'Agreerhent that, should the proposed

'  , • ■ . covered transaction be.entered into,, it shall not knowingly enter into'any lower tier covered ,
"  -.v transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, orvoluhtanly excluded *
"  ■ from participation in this covered transaction, unless,authorized by DHHS.' ' '

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
.  clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, 'Suspension". Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -

Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in ail lower tier covered
transactions and in,all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.,

8. A participant in a covered transaction may. rely upon a certification of a prospective participarit in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the,certification is erroneous.. A participant may

■  decide the method and frequency'-by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant rnay., but ismot'required to. check the Nonprpcurement List (of excluded parties)

^  ' htlps://www.ecfr.gov/current/litie-22/chapter-V/part-513! , " • ,
^  ̂ ^ , ■' ' . .1- -V ^

Vl 6/23 ' - ,L Exhibit-D Contractor's Initials
"  " ■ ^. -Date^/^OZS •

In tial

1- . ' - -v .-\t , -i . .•
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9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall'ije construe'd:toiEx^inre€^t)lishrnent of a system of •
records in order to render in good faithihe certification'requlredtoylhis'dause. The knowledge and

•; .,v-rv ■?;- • ,/ " information of a participant is not requlred:tOiexceed'ithat?whichiis,indnmally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business^dealings. h i. : ■ '

' 10. Except for transactions authorized undenparagraphi6sof8hiiBseiinsta^iohs. if a participant in a
.■.r-i. •- covered transaction kriowingly enters into a'lowertier;cdvered-1ransaction, with a person who is
y . . v..; .,' ' suspended, debarred, ineligible, or vdluntarilyexcludedifromipartlclpation in this transaction, in

:  . ' " . jaddition to other remedies available toithe (Federal goverhmeiat.aDhlhlSi may terminate this.
" V''" i ' transaction for cause or default. • . . " .

■  " ■ ■ primary COVERED TRANSACTIONS - —
.. 11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its=knowledge and belief, that it and its ■ .

/  \ , ,principals; . *
'.11.1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed,for debarment, declared ineligible, or

; " r Y'; • . .. • • voluntarily excluded from covered transactions'by-any Federal department or agency;
'. . 11.2. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (Agreement) been convicted.of-

-> -* ■ or had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense
in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or
local)'transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State

^  ■ ; i antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or
'  . ' ' destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;'

-  * - . U.S. Are not presently indicted "for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
.  - ' (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph
r  '- i '■ : • " (l)(b) of this certification; and . ■ • ' ■
.■ 11.4. Have not within a three-year period preqeding this application/proposal had one or more ,

I'. ' , public transactions (Federal,; State or local),terrhinated for cause of default.

•  12., Where the prospective prifnary participant is unable to'certify to any of the statements in this. ,
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

\ 'LowerTfERCbVEREDTRANSACTIONS. , . L- ,
"13. Bysigningandsubmittingthislowertierproposal(Agreemeht),theprospectivelovyertier . . •

■ pariicipant, as defined, In 45 CFR Part 76, 'certifies to the best of Its knowledge and bejief that jt and.-. .
{  its principals: ; . . ,• •- •

13.1. (.Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed'for debarment, declared ineligible, or ,
V vr. voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or . . .
ji- L - • agency. , - L- • ■ . ^;!* -V.Y,:. 13.2. ■ Where the prospective lower tier participant'is unable" to certify to any of the above, such \

. v; prospective participant,shall attach an explanation Jo.this proposal (Agreement). ■

• 14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (Agreement), that it • , •
will include this clause entitled Xertificatipn Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Iheligibility, and

^  ' Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lowertier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. , ,

i; ■ -.V- —0-' ■ ■ . '
'  .Exhibit D " - . . V. ,• • Contractor's Initials 'L "

^ Sr 'Fedefal.Requirements.',:-:, 'L ■ "'I - Date^/^V^Q^^ . '
.pageVofio:'; '-:.v
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
'  \ Exhibit D - FederaUJeguirements;

;  ' ' ■'-"! y-' - ■ ^ " y . / ""

■' ■ y SECTION D: CERTIFICATION OF compliance Wrr-HTsEDERAL REQUIREMENTS . .

^  I r; The Contractor identified in Section.1.3 of the General ;Rrdvistons agrees by signature of the - '
y i " ' ' : ' Contractor's representative as identified in Sectior)s^1f1■^1«^clal.42 of the General Provisions, to execute^

,  • ' the following certification; ; ; ■ * - ' ' ■ .

•">' , The Contractor will comply, and will require any subcontraotors;t6 comply, with any appiicable federa! ■ .
•  requirements, which may include t)ut are not-limited to: »T .. •• ■ ; ! " '

-  • , V/.M. Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,',andAudit.Requirements for Federal.Awards
(2 CFR 200). . ' ■ - ' ■

'  ■ ■ -2. - The Orhhlbus Crime Control and .Safe Streets Act of 1968'(42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which
' prohibits recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating," either in employment •

'  , ■ - practices or in the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national'
.  - origin, and sex. The Act requires certain recipients to produce,an Equal Employm_ent Opportunity '

Plan; . - ' ■

'' ; ' . 3..^ .The Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention'Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts
; ■ ^byreference. the civil rights obligations ofthe Safe Streets Act. Recipients offederal funding under

,• . this'statute are prohibited from discriminating; either in employment practices or in the delivery of
; • ; . ', services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes

•  " 'Equal Employment Opportunity Plan requirements; , '

.  . ' '4. The Civil Rights Act ofi964 (42 U.S:C. Section 2000d,.which prohibits recipients offederal financial .
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race,'color, or national.originlh any prograrn or' ,

: . , ' ^activity); -- ^ '
. 5. ' The Rehabilitation Act of 1973' (29 U.S.C. Section794)i which prohibits recipients of Federal

'  ; "■ financial assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the ;
'{r- ^.delivery of services or benefits, inanyprog'rarp or activity; - . . - ' .

'  : e.v'The Americans with-Disabilities Act ojf 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which'prohibits .
/■: . ' 'discrimination and ensures equal,opportunity for person's with disabilities.in employment, State and

local government services, public accommodations,.comrriercial facilities, and transportation:

'.7.7' The Education.Amendmients of'197'2 (20 IJ.S.C. Sections l"68,i; 1683; 1685-86), which.prohlbits; . ■ ■ ■ .
;Vv' ' ^discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted e'ducation programs;

; 8. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C.Sections-6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on
'  the basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federalfihanclal assistance. It does not include

• " 7 - employment discrirninatjon:% y/7 ' * ' : ' ' .
y'"' yjo, '28"c.f:.R.' pt. 31'.(U.'S, Department of Justlce.Regulatiohs'-OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt.-. • -

■  ̂ . . '■ 42 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations-Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; ' ,
■  • ' Policies and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based

and community organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles
and policy-making criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations:

10. 28 C.F.R'. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense
Authorization Act (NDAA)for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted. January 2, 2013) the Pilot
Program for Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects
employees against reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants

•  . " and contracts. ' . . ' . / ; . . ' ' ! -•
,  '11. The Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-767iq:) which seeks.to protect human fieklth and the

■' - environment from emissions that pollute ambient, or outdoor,,air.

!  -T

' J .

v;..

• - f

iA■ I "■ - -
^v':} •■-.v.vl-6/23 " r-. ' 1 Exhibit.D'y • • ' : Contractor's Initials
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, New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Semces
f  > Exhibit D -: Federal Requirements

12: TheClean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387) which establishes the basic structure for regulating'
discharges of pollutants into the waters of the United States and regulating quality standards for
surface waters. . '

;.13. Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense Acquisition Regulations Council (Councils) (41
,  : U.S.C.. 1908) which establishes administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where

contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as.
.  appropriate. ... •

'  14'." Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards'Act (40 U.S.C. S/OI-ST'OO) which establishes that all
L contracts awarded by the non-Federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve the employment of
mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as

. supplemented by Department of Labor regulaj5ons_(29 CFR Part 5).

.15. Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement 37 CFR § 401.2 (a) which establishes .
.«■ the recipient or subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit

'  organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental,
'  . •; ■ ■ developmental,or research'work under that "funding agreement," the recipient or subrecipient must

■ comply with the requirements of 37-CFR Part"401^ "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit-
•  • ' .Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative

'  Agreements," and any irhplementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the Agreement: False certification of Violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of Agreements, or government wide suspension or
.debarment.

: " '

»  ,

,  ' f-

In the event a Federal or State court or Federal.or State administrative agency makes a finding of
^discrimination aftera due process hearing on.th'e grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
^against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights,
-to the applicable contracting-agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services,
and to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman. ■ ^

.  The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the .General-Provisions agrees by signature of the
i  i Contractor's representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 ancl 1.12 of the'General Provisions. tO execute

"• u'-., . the following certification: . " f , . .

1. " By.signing and subniitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to comply with.the provisions
indicated above. , " . - • - ,

■ y1 6/23 • Exhibit.D'i •Contractor's Initials
•  Federal RequiremehtS' V.^ V- oate^THT^U^, • - . Federal;RequiremehtS'/.« ■ . ''

Intlal

■" -'.PageTofid-:' ^' c ^'3 ' ^ ' • '• • ' • v' ' i ^ I ••
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services '

v. V Exhibit D - Federal Requirements

.  , SECTION E: CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAT-TOBAGCO SMOKE

.. . Public Law 103-227, Part 0 - Environmental TolDacco.Smoke, alsoiknown as ttie Pro-Children Act of ""

.  , • .1994 (Act), requires that.smoking not be permitted in anyportion©f:any indoor facility owned or leased
• ; - •, ''^or contracted for by,an entity and used routinely or regularly;lbr4heprovision of heaitti, day care, '

■  * '• education, or library services to children under the age;ofii;B,iiftthfi!services are funded by Federal
programs either directly or through State or local governments, federal grant, contract, loan, or loan

•  ' • "guarantee. The lavv does not apply to children's servlcesjprowidediin;prjvate residences, facilities funded
. \ ; solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilitLesujsed »for inpatient drug or alcohol.

•  ■■■■'. . treatment.- Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil
. monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or the impositipn©fan administrative compliance order on

/ -' ■ ■ * the responsible entity.

'  ■ The Contractor identified, in Section 1.3 of the' General Provisions agrees, by signature of the - ,
Contractor's representative as identified in Section t.l l and 1.,12x>f the General Provisions, to execute

,  . - .the following certification: - . .

V  . / 1.- By signing and submitting this Agreement, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to
comply with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act
of 1994. •

•-< .
( . ■

r  . ,

.t.i ' .y

■■ y}A.

'  I..

Inmal
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D Federal Requirements

*  ' t / '

.  r- .■

SECTION F: CERTIFICATION REGARDINGT^HEiFEDERAT-'FUNDING ACCCUNTABILITY AND
TRANSPARENCY ACT fFFATA) COMPLIANCE

• - The Federal Funding Accountability and Tran^rencyiActtdFiFATA) requires prime awardees of
•  individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $30i000«nd awarded oh or after October 1, 2010, to
■  report on data related to executive compensationand associated first-tier sub-grants of $30,000 or"

more. If the initial avyard is below'$30,000 but-subsequent'grant modifications result in a total award •
'i- equal to or over.$30,000, the award is subject toihe FFATiAirepprtirig requirements, as of the date of

;  the award. • . ' ' ' . - ' ■ * • "

■' in accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting! Subawardand Executive Compensation Information).
* the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) mustreport-the following information for any
' sub,award or contract award subject to the FFATAreportingirequirernents; '

1. Name of entity ' " , ,

, 2'. " Amount of award. " ■ -

3. " Funding agency ■ ,

4. NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants • "

5. Program source ' \ , • • ' . '

6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action ' . . ■ •

*  7.- Location of the entity; , -- • • ' , ; , . >

'8. * Principle place of performance- . " . :

: 9. - Unique Entity Identifier (SAM UEI/PUNS#) - - ; '

•  10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:' V • : ,
^  ■ ^0X More than 80%'of annual grdss.revehues are'from the Federal goverhrneht, and those•

': • >' " revenues are; greater than $25M annually and ■ ' • - '
;  • 10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC., -

' Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30
' days,-in which the award or.avvard amendmentjs made. ' "

'i:- t '' * ; . . V •• • ^
Jh'e Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of'^e General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions
of The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-2:82 and Public Law 110-,
252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further
agrees to have the Contractors representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General
Provisions execute the following Certification: •

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable p?bvisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

'  ■ . '% • • ' ' I

' ". ,7 •

-r^ '•■■'.."Exhibit D . . Contractor's Initials
.  ; :FederarRequirements^-'j:,^_,^\-' Date^7?^l/2025 ' .
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N^w Hampshire Department of Health anci Human Services
.  . Exhibit D -Federal RequireiJieJits s

T

FORM A / - - ■ ,

•' As the Grantee identified in Section 1.3 of the GeneraiProvisic^^ilcBilify.-'th'at the responses to' the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

.  1. ; The>UEI (SAM.goy) number for your entity is:.
M1GLYK4NH213...

2. - In your business or organization's preceding completed*Jiscali^ar„ jdid!your business or '
organization receive "(1) 80 percent or more.of your annnal^graassoiewenue in U.S. federal contracts,

-  subcontracts, loans, grants, sub-grants, arid/or coOperativeagreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or
more In annual gross revenues from U.S! federal contracte,subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants,

-  and/or cooperative agreements?- , • , / ' l: • .

NO YES

"  If the answer to #2 above is NO', stop'here . . ,
.  - If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the fdliovying;; " ■ ' -

3.' Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your" .
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986? ' •

NO YES .

'- If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here , t;-: . • ;•
. -.'if the .answerto#3 above is NO, please.answer the foliowing:- - , . ■ .

.,4.^.', The names and cprhpensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or '
, organization areas follows: ■ ' , • . .

' i,' •

Name:

V'-
: Name:

Name:

Name:.

Narhe:

■Amount:

. ''Amount: /

Amount:

-V

.Amount:

Amourit;

4/21/2025 .

Date:

I ,

Contractor Name: NH Alcohol, and Drug Abuse Counselors Associatio

—signed by;

, Oin<i\\AX^ AlctuuAA
.nsEasauueBEay.

Name* Christine McKenna
Title: -president' '

y1 6/23 , Exhibit D m" . : . '.Contractor's Initials
", • i . • ■ • ■ . ^ Federal Requirements-/:,- , ,

\  I t ■; ''' \
■  • '..fV-'-.Tr-.i i't-/'-'' -'PageMobf 10.
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-  j.' •
•  f. -

State of New Hampshire
r  I \ '

Department of State

'  < s

CERTEFICAiTE

I, Da\id M. Scaalan, Secretaiy of State of the State of New Hamps^, do hereby certify that HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL
AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business

•  in Ne%\' Hampshire on Noveinber 26, 1985.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office

have b^ received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned. •

Business ID: 89242

Cotificate Number: 0006673542-

SI
6f.

y
u.

•  IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

. I hereto set my hand and ca\ix tp be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,'

this 22nd day of April A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State

-j ''J'?;'
,  I

■ . i.
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CERTinCATEt)F AtrTHORTTY

.hereby certify tli atI. Emily Carrara : ^
: r; '(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot-be contractsignatory) , , ,

1.1 am a duly Ptented Clerk/Se^r^ry/Qfficer of New HamostilrB Aicohbl and.t)fuQ Abuse Counselors Assodatton:. -
"  , (Cwporatipn/LLC Name)

i  2; the following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meetingnf the BoardsoTDlractDr^shareholders, duly called and
t^id on January 23. 2025. at which a quorum Of the DIrectofB/shareholdecs were ,present and voting.

■' » (Date) . :

• . VOTED: That Christine McKenna. President Carol Furtdna/PresidentEtect orPiane Fontrwau. Immediate Past
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory) .

* 'f . * • . ' - • * • ' • '

. President (may iiat more than one person) are duly authorized on behalf of New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug
(Name ofCorporalioo/LLC)

Abuse Counselors Associatton to entw into contracts or agWments with the Slate of New Hampshire and any of its
agencies or (tepartments and further is au^rized to execute any and all documents, agreements and other

■1-' Instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may In his/her judgmen t be desirable
ornecesiary to effect the purpose of this vote. •: ~ '

• J,

, , 3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or. repealed, and renialns lii full fon:» and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract an>endment to which this certificate Is attached.^fThte authority was* valid tWrty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify
that It is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(8) listed
above currently occupy the po8itlon(s) Indicated and that th^ have full authority to bind the corporation. To the

.7 extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the
'  State.of New Hampshire, afl such limitations are expressly stated herein.

- bat^: 3/25/25
Signature of EfeCted Officer
Name: Emily CaiTdra
Tide: Secre^_

V-',

• »' . •«■

^ A. '

* A

f' * *

.  ■ ; Rev. 03/24/20 i
-  .< --fi: • ,.•! .. >.

■] „ 1 '■ ■ ■■ •- .
oV.' *■

.y '



AC^D CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MItVOD/YYYY)

05/01/2025

< THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND.CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRM/\TIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND,'EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES •
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHOR'iZED ' . '

„ REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(ie8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsem'entjs). , ' •

PRODUCER * — • , •

Byse Insurance • Laconia

67 VVater Street Unit 201 , , , •

Laconia" . . ' NH 03246 • \ ,

Lisalkerd ■ • "

K (203) 673-1201 ,603,524-0748

ADDRESS- l-isa@hpminsurance.com
INSURER(S)AFFORDING COVERAGE- NAIc'f' .

INSURER A: Continental Casualty Company 20443

INSURED . • ■

NH ALCOHOL 4 DRUG ABUSE COUNSELERS (SEE ENDT) -

-  130 PEMBROKE RDSTE 150 '

'130 Pembroke Road. Ste: 150

. CONCORD . , NH 03301 -' ;

INSURER B: travelers Property Casualty Co of America (A/R) -

INSURER c - Hanover Insurance Company 22292

INSURER D: -

INSURER E : -

INSURER F: • •
•

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: CL255141661 V REVISION NUMBER:
-THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER (XICUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSUR/VNCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. " -

INSR
LTR .. TYPE OF INSURANCE

AUUL

|N?g
SUUK

WYD POLICY NUMBER ' /
POLICY EPP

(MM/DD/YYYYl
POUCYEXF
IMM/OOIYYYY) LIMITS

A

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

£  1 ̂  OCCUR

6025655757 06/30/2024 06/30/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE
j 2.000,000

CLAIMS-MAD
OAMAGE TO RENTES
PRFMISES (Ea eecurtence)

, 1,000.000

MED EXP (Arty one oerton]
, 10,000

.  • ■ PERSONAL S AOV INJURY
, 2,000,000

OEM! AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER; GENERAL AGGREGATE
, 4,000.000

POLICY 1 1 JECT 1 1 LOG
OTHER:

PRODUCTS - COMPA3P AGG
, 4,000.000

BAIL . S 1,000

• A ,

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

6025655757, . . , • ; - 06/30/2024 ,06/30/2025

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
lEa acddcni)

ANY AUTO" ■ ■ ■

HEDULED"

TOS
m-OWNEO
ITOS ONLY

BOOILY INJURY (Per oerton)

OWNED :
AUTOS ONLY • .

HIRED r
AUTOS ONLY

SC
A1

BODILY INJURY (Per accideni)

NC
At

PROPERTY OAMAGE
rper arrkJentI

s

' V

UMBf^LLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

OCCUR

CLAIUS-MAOE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE ' s

OE(J ■ '•• RETENTIONS

"b

WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS'UABIUTY

ANY PROPRIETORAWlTNER/EXECU'nVE 1 1

OFFICERflJEMBER EXCLUDED? -
(Mandatory In NH) ' '
u vet. detcnbe laider
DESCRIPTION OF OPERA-nONS bekM

NIA 6JUB-0413N90-8-25 • - 05/03/2025 05/03/2026

PER OTH-
^ STATUTE ER

E.L EACHACaOENT
, 100.000

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE
, 100,000

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT
, 500,000

c
Professional Liability '

LHVH29508304 ' " ' /- ■06/30/2024 • 06/30/2025 ■

General Aggregate
Professional Liability

Privacy & Security Uability

$3,000,000

$1,000,000 .J' •
$1,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addltk>rul Ramjriu Schedule, may be atuched II more epaee It required)

Work peformed during the policy period. Certificate Holder is included as additional insured as per written contract or agreement and per SB146932G
(10-19) endorsement attached to the policy. . . . ■

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

.. . ' .■ ' ' , - ' ■ • V

state of NH Department of Health arrd Human Services
129 Pleasant Street ^ '

•  ' .3,Concord ■ ^ ,-NH'03301-3857'

■ SHOULO ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN '
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE -I

': - - >
i. ' *

- ■ • ACORD 25 (2016/03). v
'  "v . ©1988-2015ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.. '

The ACORD name and logo'are registered marks of ACORD - ;
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'  Mission: NHADACA's mission as to provide quality •,

;" education, workforce developmeTit,! advoEacy, ethical •
■  'Standards and leadership fqraddiiition,ipir©ifessionals. We

empower efforts in preventlon;itreatmeiatand recovery.

tl

V;" • ■ . - f' *
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TELEPHONE(603)-228-5400
, FAXfl.(603)Z26-3532

INDEPENDENT arorrOK'SlJ®

. MEMBBROFTHEPRTVATE •

COMPANIES PRACTICE SECTION

To die Board of Directors

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association
Concord, New Hampshire 03301

■ Opinion

•We have audited the accompanying financial statements of New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors
Association (the Association), which comprise the statement of financial,position as of December 31, 2023 ̂ d the
related statements of activities and changes in net assets,'functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements. ;

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
positioQ of New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association as of December 31, 2023 and the

- changes in net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
^ accepted ill the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted cm audit in accordance with auditing standaMs generally accepted in the United Stat« of America:
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of flie
Finandal Statements section of our report. We are required to be^independent of New Hampshire Alcohol and
-Drug Abuse Counselors Association and to meet our other e^cal responsibilities in accordance wiA the relevant
ethical requirements relatiog to our audit. We believe that the. audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. ' ' •

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements .

.Management is responsible for the preparation and fair pre^ntatibn of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and

. maintenance, of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair .presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatcment, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse
Counselors Association's ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial
statements are available to be issued.

•  - ' j

t  , }

►  -

•. .1,
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Auditor's Rcsiwnsibilities for the Audit of the Fiiianciai Statements ■ i ' ̂ .

Our objectives ̂  to obtain reasonable assurance about whether Ac fimmcial statements as a whole are free from
-  , matOTd misstatemcnt, whether due to fraud or error, and to issoemianditor's report Aat includes our opinion.
' Re^nable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absohito assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that

an audit conducted in accordance wiA generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material, . ,
•  ' rhisstatcinent when it exists. The risk of not detecting a .materialatiisstatcmcnt resulting from fraud is higher than for
•" - one resulting fit)m error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, antcntional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of ihtemal control. Misstatements arc consideied matcrialUfihcrc is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the

•  fihmdal-statements. ■ •

In performing an audit in accordance witii generally accepted auditing sttmdards, wc;

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout Ae audit.

Identify and assess Ae risks of material misstatement of Ae financial statements, wheAer due to fraud or
'  .' • . error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to Aose risks. Such procedures mclude

T- > / examining, on a test basis, evidtmdc regarAng Ae amounts and disclosures m Ac financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to Ac audit in order to design audit procedures Aat
are appropriate in Ae circumstances, but not for Ae purpose of expressing an opinion on Ae effectiveness

^ of New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselor's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion
' /• is expressed.

Evaluate Ae appropriateness of accounting policies iwed and Ae reasonableness of significant accounting
■  \ estimates made by m^agement, as well as ey^uate Ae overall presentation of Ae financial statements.

;. - ,' : ■ Conclude whcAer, in our judgment, Acre are conditions or events; considered in Ae aggregate, Aat raise
,  ' ' ' mbstantial doubt about New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association's abAty to

continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

•  . We are required to communicate wiA Aose charged wA governance regarding, among oAer matters, Ae planned
-• scope,^d timing of Ae auAt, significant auAt findings, and certain mt^al control related matters Aat we identified

*' . 'diixirig Ae audit. . * ■ " 7 '

Report on Summarized Comparativclnformation

We have previously auAted New Hampshire Alcohol ̂ d Drug Abuse Counselor Association's 2022. financial
statements, ̂ d we expressed an immodified audit opinion on Aose auAted financial statements m our report dated

"  "Juhe 13,2023. In our opimon, Ae summarized comparative'ihformation presented hercm as of and for Ae year ended
December 31,2022, is consistent, m all material respects, wiA Ae auAted financial statements from which it has been
derived. :

Rowley & Associates, P.O. • '
Concord, New Hampshire .

.July 12,2024 - . . ' " • ' 'V

,' 'i' -' - V.-'

•  ' ' ■ ■■ ' v' ■' "k ■
t
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■  : NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG
-  '.ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

STATEI^NT OF FINANCIAL POSITION , ' - .
DECEMBER 31,2023 WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2022

' See Independent Audilore'Rq>oit

Net Assets Without Net Assets With > •

Donor Restrictions Donor Restrictions 2023 2022

■  • . ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS .

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable

Prepaid expense

-FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT, at cost

Less accumulated depreciation

LONG TERM ASSETS

, Security deposit

^ght of use asset

Total Assets

.  ' LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURR^T LIABILltlES. ,
.  Accounts payable

• Accrued expenses - ■

' Deferred revenue

Lease liability - Operating lease - -

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

-■ l';Lcase liability -long term portion

NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions

With donor restrctions

Total liabilities and net assets

S  92,327 " S

.  -M

65,856 • S . 158,183 - S .,  159,923
238,936 - 238,936 159,929

3,361 ■ " ' 3>1 . 6,010
334,624 65,856 400.480 . 325,862

.  , ■ ' .113,147 ■ .  ■
113,147 .92,699

(78,813) . (78,813) ■' (69,725)
•  ■ 34,334 •- 34,334 22,974

2;800 2,800 2,800
366,649 ' . - 366,649 406,940
369,449 . 369,449 409,740

738,407 , 65,856

1 •

804,263 '■ 758,576

r

14' • • ,  ■ ■ 14

.  t ■

2,118
'  ■* .9.119 . 9.119 9,041

.  ■ 5,730 5,730 , ' 6,350
52,140 ■ ■ - 52,140 52,140
67,003 - 67,003 69.649

309,927'"' ' . 309,927 ' 354,800
■  - . - -309,927 '■ ' r  • 309,927 ■ 354,800 ■

361,477 . 361,477 288,608
t 65,856 65,856 45,519

361,477 ■, 65,856 427,333 ,  334,127

S ; ■ 738,407'-^' S 65,856 ' S ,  804,263 ■ S ■ 758,576

'  k. ' ^
, ; I, • , ►. \

"  . ..

£. <1 -1

-  . Scc'Notcs to Financial Staterricnts.

.  - I- . •' ' i|,-, •
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^fEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG .

■  ABUSE COUNSELORS, ASSOCIATION V

: ,STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSCTS

.  FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2023

WITH COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR 2022

.See Indq>cndent Auditors'Report i

• 2023

j'

' i '

,  ■ r • , • Net Assets Without Net Assets With '  2022

Donor Restrictions Donor -Restiictions Total Total.

Operating Revenue " * .

•  .

Grant revenue . •, — . S  ■ . 873,514 $  71,156 S  944,670 ■ $ . ■ 748,263 .

Contributions, in-kind 2,125 . -  . 2,125 5,250

.. Contributions, noncash .443 - 443 .  253
Training fees ■  .107,558 107,558 119,000

Membership fees 10,426 10,426 11,033

.Total Operating Revenue 994,066 .7i;i56. .  1.065.222 '  ' 883.7W

.  • Net assets released from

donor imposed restrictions 50,819 (50,819) - -

■ Expenses • .

Program expenses 973,609 .  - 973,609 788,913

Administrative expenses / . 60,817 60,817 48,042

Fundraising 7,365 ' • 7,365 -  3,194

Total Expenses' ■  1,041,791 ■; >, - 1,041,791 , ' 840,149

-  •" Operating Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets '  3,094 - ■■20,337 -  23,431 . 43.650

• Non-<^rating Income' ~ , .f • • ' ; ■ *  1 . .

' . Room rental " 1,750 • .. 1,750 ■ ■, - , 925

Loss on disposal fixed asset * •  . * - '  ̂ ■-,,(448)
Interest " " — -  ' 79 • 1 -  . • ■ ■ 79 ■ :  46

Employee Retention Credit •  ' . . ■ -  ■ '  • 63,786
Chiuitablc gaming pipcecds

V* • . net fees of $6,000 and $ 12,000 - 25,992 .  25,992 / \'.31,052
Behavioral health summit ■ , ^ 39,963 • ■ ,39,963",
Clh'crrevenue ' ' . 1,991 ■1,991* .  ■ " ' 2,384

Total Non-Operating Income 69,775

y . t

69,775 ■  97,745

Net Increase in Net Assets *  72,869 20,337 93,206 141395

Net assets, beginning of year . 288,608 45,519 334,127 192.732

Net assets, end of year S  -361,477 S  65,856 ■ $  427,333 S  334,127

'A'-:

. See Notes to Financial Statements '

■' • - ; ■ ■ .f •

t

•  j .

o.'.'
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION >

SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

year'ENDED DECEMBER 31,2023 WITH
THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2022.

Sec Independent Auditors'Report .

Salaries and wages

Employee benefits
,  Payroll taxes

Scholarships/sponsorships

Registration fees
.Training

Legal and accounting fees .
Professional services

Trainer fees

, • -Conferences and meetings ' .

^ ; Insurance
Travel expenses '. ' . '
Office supplies and expenses

'  ' 'Repairs & maintenance
Postage

Telephone

.'Education ■ .

: Marketing & communication
Data security

:. Board expenses

; , Occupancy expenses

: Depreciation
"■ Miscellaneous expenses '

lYdgram
Services •

$ 459,876
54,062

.  36,566
13,450
28,409
47,069
11,387'

175,302
11,932

.  7.182
4,628

'• ■:23,161. ,
. 19,187

211

'  844
; 1,412

> 282
-  ■ 7,365

.  10,397.
2,684

*  ■ '44,705
'• •8,542.

4,956

S 973,609

'  -.1 ' ' '

1 COMPARATIVE TOTALS FOR

■  ■ ■ ■ ■; .

*  >

Management
and General ' Fundraising

1  • » '

•  - j

' Total > ■

2023

Total ,
2022

.$. .. 29,354. IS . $  489,230 $ 301,980

;  ■ ■ 3,451 - 57,513 32,728
.  . 2,334' , - .38,900 24,658

'  '13,450 .■ '45,083
'  , 1,81-3" . - 30,222 ■ 39,427

■  3.004,. - 50,073 , 10,321
-  .727- ■ ' • 12,114 . 11,242
11,190 , - 186,492 . 155,180

762 ■ 12,694 ■  85,408
-458 - 7,640 7,543

,V- 295 . -. ■ 4,923 ,  ' - 3,229
l,478,f, -  • 24,639 / 8,283-

•  ■ 1,225 ' . .  20,412 . ^ .  ' 32,719
V ^ -14 ■- - •  225 7,879"

"■ . 54 " 898 271

90' ■ ^ / -i,502 ' 1,910
' • ' 18'- • . 300 760

.  ■ S -■ ••
•  . *. • . 1 '

• - i ■' V 7,'365 .  " 14,730 V 4,389
664 ■ 11,061 ■ . 2,285

:  ̂ ■17\ : ■ 2,855 oo
o 002,854 ^7.559;, ; .-5X315

'545\'/V' ' ; 9,087 . :  .5,816^
"  ' " ■ 316 ; ■ ■ ■ -  , ■5,272. . 4,915

'$ 60,817 $ 7,365 $ 1,041,791. $ 840,149

t, ' j- •' ■ f ] ■ '

.  • r-: rf.t \
t./.. . . • • f . r .t

-.1. i. 'l' •

"See Notes to'Financial Statement .

-  '■ -y '
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'Ik

NEW flAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG

ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2023 AND M2

See IiKiependent Auditors' Rq>oit

:sm 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Increase in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net ass^ to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Loss on sale of equipment
Depreciation

Amortization - operating iMse
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:

Accounts receivable

Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Deferred revenue

Net cash provid€«I by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net cash paid for Itimituie & equipment

Net cash (used) by investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of operating lease

Net cash (used) by financning activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivdents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, ̂ d of yeas

9,087

40;291

(79,007)

2,649

(2.104)

78

(620)

63.580

(20,448)

(20,448)

(44,872)

(44,872)

(1,740)

159,923

$  158,183

141,395

5,816

(113,959)

(2,327)

(4,113)

4,743

(7.745)

24.258

(16.769)

(16,769)

152,434

$  159,923

See Notes to Financial Statements

-6-
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\  '

-NEW HAMPSHIRE ALC^

:  ; CABySE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION ' . . - '

I'STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR JHE YEARS EWED DECEMBER 31. 2023 AND 2022-

.  ' .See Independent Auditors'Report

2023 2022

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
r  , . i

i * * » ' ' • * , • • '; , ' • ^ '
\  % ' ' ' ' ' ,

>In-kind contributions r. ;$ . 2,125 $ 5,250

Non^ash contributions $ 443 $ 253

i  \

f

V  r »

;  --r

.1

See Notes to-Financial Statements .
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2023 and 2022

NOTE 1 NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counseta Association's (the Association) mission is to
provide quality education, workforce development, advocacy, ethical standards and leadership for
addiction professionals. The Association empowers efforts in prevention, treatment and recovery. The
Association is supported primarily through private fimding and public support.

Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the Association have been prepared in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) as applied to not-for-profits. Die Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting
principles for not-for-profrts. The more significant of the FASB's generally accepted accounting
principles applicable to the Association, mid the Association's conformity with such principles, are
described below. Diese disclosures are an integral part of the Association's financial statements.

Basis of Presentation

The Organization maintains its accounting records on the accrual basis of accounting whereby revraues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when the obligation is incurred. The Organization
reports information regarding its financial position and activities according to two classes of net assets:
net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions.

Net Assets without Donor Restrictions - These net assets generally result from revenues
generated by receiving contributions that have no donor restrictions, providing services, and
receiving interest from operating investments, less expenses incurred in providing program-
related services, raising contributions, and performing administrative functions.

Net Assets with Donor Restrictions - These net assets result from gifts of cash and other assets
that are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets, either
temporarily or permanently, until the donor restriction expires, that is until the stipulated time
restriction ends or the purpose of the restriction is accomplished, the net assets are restricted.

Cash Equivalents
For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Association considers all highly liquid debt instruments
purchased with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents, excluding amounts the use of
which is limited by Board designation or restriction. At December 31,2023 and 2022, the Association
had no cash equivalents.

Revenue and Revenue Recoeaiition

Revenue is recognized when earned. Program service fees and payments under cost-reimbursable
contracts received in advance are deferred to the applicable period in which the related services are
performed, or expenditures are incurred, respectively. Contributions are recognized when cash or other
assets are received.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION .

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ■ ■ , _ .
DECEMBER 31,2023 and 2022 . . . ' V ^

V V NOTE 1. NATURE OF ACTiyiTIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) .

^  ■ :D6nated Materials and Services \ "

The Association records the value of donated goods and services when there is an objective basis
■ available to measure their value. For the years ended December 31,2023 and 2022, in-kind and non- ^

•  , '' cash contributions were,$2,125 and $5,250 and $443 and $253, respectively. All contributed services
were considered without donor restriction and were valued at fair-market-yalue.^

'  -r ' Equipment ' ' '
Equipment is recorded atcost of purchase or, if contributed, at fair market value at the date of donation.

'  If donors stipulate how long the assets must be used, the contributions are recorded as, net ̂ sets with
1- donor restriction support. In the absence of such stipulations contributions of equipment are recorded as

net assets without donor restriction support. The Association depreciates equipment over a 5-7 year
'' useful life using the straight-line method. Depreciation expense was $9,087 and $5,816 for the years

ended December 31, 2023 and 2022.. Equipment purchases with a cost under $500 are not capitalized;

.. Income Taxes , . ' ■
The Association has been notified by the Iritemal Revenue Service that it is exempt from federal income

,  '• taxes under,Section50i(c)(3)ofthe Internal Revenue Code.' Association is furthCT classified as an '
. . • organization that is not a private foundation imder Section 509(a)(3) of the Code. The most significant

f  " - tax positions of the Organization are its assertion that it is exempt from income taxes and its
'  determination of whether any amounts are subject to unrelated business tax (UBIT). The Organization

.  follows the guidance of Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 740, Accounting for Income Taxes,
re.lked.to uncertain income taxes, which prescribes a threshold of more'likely than not for recognition

.  and recognition of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Ail significant tax
,  .positions have been considered by management. It has been determined that it is rnore likely than not -

'that all tax positions would be sustained upon examination by taxing authorities. Accordingly, no '
/  ; . , - provision for income taxes has been recorded. . , < - i V. ■ -

;  ; ' ' Use of Estimates ' - . ■ '- ■ .
.  The preparation of financial statements requires manageraent!to m^e estimates and assumptions that

' ^ t ' 'affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at
■ \ V - ' ;the date of the financial statements and'the reportedr amourits^ of revenue and expense^ during the
• : . reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates;

'  Comparative Financial Information . - '
The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized compiarative information in total but not
by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in

•  conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be
read in conjunction with the Association's financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022,
from which the summarized information was derived.

Reclassifi cation • - . . ^
■  \ . - . Certain 2022 amounts have been reclassified to conform wim the 2023 financial statement presentation.

;-•• • • v.'.;:,;,: ^ V :• .
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /

" 'DECEMBER 31,2023 and 2022 ^ ' v "

. NOTE l. ;.NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED),

■3.f.

Financial lnstruments . ■ - ^
'  The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents,iaccountsieceivable, prepaid expense, deferred ' '

. revenue, accounts payable , and accrued'expenscsvarie.statedat carrying cost at December 31, 2023 and
2022, which approximates fair value due to the relativelyjshort maturity of these instruments.

'  * • . . _ • • V, ■ ', / ' ^ ^ , • , ' . ■ 1'
Cost Allocation and Functional Exoeiises .

'  . The costs of providing the various programs and otha activities have been summarized on a functional
^basis in the statements of activities and functional expenses. ■ Accordingly, certain costs have been
allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited based on estimates that are based on
their relationship to those activities, consistently applied. Those expenses include payroll and payroll

.  related expenses and occupancy costs. Occupancy costs are allocated based on squ^e footage. Payroll
and payroll related expenses are based on estifnates of time anil effort. Other cost allocations are based

•on this relationship between the expenditure and the activities benefited. '

^  Leases ^

-  In February, 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02; L^es (Topic 842). Under the new guidance, a,
lessee is required to recognize assets and liabilities for leases with lease terms of more than twelve -
months. Consistent with current GAAP, the recognition, measurement, and presentation of

.  expenses and cash flows arising froin a lease by a lessee primarily depends on its classification as a
finance or operating lease. However, unlike current GAlAP—^which required only capital leases.to
be recognized on the stateihent of financiM position—the new ASU requires both types of leases to .

.  be recognized on the statement of financiai positidh. This standard was implemented as of
■ December 31,2022. - v

s ■

/.NOTE 2. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES , ■ , - '

'  - • The Association receives a substantial amount of its support from government agencies. A significant
. , \ reduction in the level of this support, if this were to occur, may have an effect on the Association's

programs and activities. Grants often require the fulfillment of certain conditions as set forth in the
' / ; ^instrument of the grant. Failure to fulfill the conditions could result in the return of funds to grantors. '

-i'" i Although the retum of funds is,a possibilityi the board of directors deems the contingency unlikely,
:  since by accepting the grants and their terms, it-has made a commitment to fulfill the provisions of the

grant. .

Approximately 80% and 50% of total support was derived from a single grant from the State of New
Hampshire for years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

> - r

.  - . . . .. .... .

'  V- 'y . ' . ' ' ••• •• • i lO*",.' i't r
^  .• • • - .•' •-.I

•  ; '--V"'
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V  NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

n6^ . ^ . •
'DECEMBER31,'2023.and,2022 ■

1  NOTE3 CONCENTRATION OF RISK ' . -

The Association maint^s cash balances in several accounts at.a local bank. These accounts are insured

by the Federal Deposit Insurance.Corporation iip to $250,000; ̂At various times throii^out the year; the
v : ' ' Association may have cash balances at the financial ihstitution'that exceeds the insured amount.'

,  ' .. Management does not believe this concentration of cash results in a high level of risk for the
.  , Association; At December,31, 2023 and 2022: the Association hadno uninsured cash balances. ■

"nDtea^airvA ^ ■ ' - ' '

Fair values ofassets measured oh a recurring basis at becember-31 were as follows: * ■ ,

>  , - - ■ " . Other. ,
'  I " ' . • . ■ <'' -.Unobservable'- * ,

.  ' . ; . ' ' Inputs ' ■ '
■  2023 .-Fair Value' Level (21

.  Accounts receivable , $238.936 ■ % 238.936
. 'V ' . . " ' ' '

v"; ■ ■ '■ "■ 2022 , ^
■  ■ Accounts receivable $159.929 > . - $ 159.929

•  j. The fair value of the accoimts receivable are estimated at the present value of expected future cash
flows; y. ■■ '' "

V ;^NOtE 5. COMPENSATED ABSENCES' - " r' ^

'  ; y-;. , Employees of the Organization are.entitled to paid vacation depending on job classification, length of
.  u services and other factors. " The statement of fmancial position reflects accrued vacation earned, but
; v. y'V W 'unpaid as of December 31,2023 and 2022 in the amount of $9,119 and $9,041, respectively. ••

-'i - ' ' ' ' ' . '■ • ' ' ' ' •

.  I^OTE 6 LIQinDITY AND AVAILABILITY'OF FINANCIAL ASSETS , ' .

_ ■ ■ The Association has a policy to structure,its financial assets to be available as its genera! expenditures,
.V '^ ' liabilities and other obligations come due. The Association's primary sources of support are grants and
'  V ' ■ training fees. Most of that support is held for the purpose of supporting the Association's budget; The .

Association had the following financial assets that could be readily made available within one year
to fund expenses vrithout limitations: , '

2023 2022 '
Cash and cash equivalents $15,8,183 $ 159,923
Accounts receivable y 238,936 159,929

;  • Less amounts Object to
donor imposed restriction - •, V (65.8561 = (45.519V

_  . $^4.333 ' ■
; V,, •" ' ' ' . -■'.'"j"' '' ' j' • • • . '
r; ^ ■' "■ •'-■vvV'"-"- '"'' " ; • • •

*  •• y' ' * ^ ' ■ s* V , , . . . . > ... . .

; > /'..'v.. -- , "■' ■V.-V . ■r\}
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.-DECEMBER31, 2023 and 2022
\  i > •

•  '• • • ^

■/note .7 BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS ; . ^ \
; "The Association has net assets designated for variousliutinE,projects, mid events. These funds are

V ' - . . comprised of the following as of December 31: • v :

2023

./
2022

S ■50.5,88.  : , v Cash reserve account

'^ NpTE S NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS* ■

Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following puiposed or periods at December 31: .

V  . Subject to expenditure for specific pu^ose: ,
'  . of NH Grant

■  „ > ' . JSITTPOOl Contract
JSICBPOOI Contract

' JSIPNHOOI Contract
.  , NH Problem Gambling

Dobles Foundation
.  , . . i Train it forward . ■ "

'  ' • Total net assets with donor restrictions

'  ̂ NOTE 9 LEASE COMMITMENT

2023
$ ,1.885

' 42,614

6,685
14,502 ,

■  ' - 170 '
I* '

'  , $ 65.856- '

2022
$ 2,025

■  5,777
10,074
7,373

19,796
474.

. S" The Organization leases office facilities under a long-term operating lease agreement originating in
• ^ ' - ^ June, 2023 and expiring in 2032. Base rent for the lease is established at $4,345 with three percent

^  ̂ increases "every three years. The weighted-average discount rate is b^ed on the discount rate implicit in
'  - ' the lease! The organization has elected the option to use the risk-free rate determined using a period

"". . comp^ble to the lease terms as the discount rate for leases where the implicit rate is not readily
. • . . , determinable. The risk-free rate option has been applied to the office facility class of assets. The entity

,  ' ; T .' ' elected the practical expedient to not reassess whether any expired, existing contracts, contained leases
,  , • - ; and any mdirect costs for existing leases. v Z. ' .

Total right-of-use assets and lease liabilities at December31, 2023 are as follows:^
Lease Assets- Classification in Statement of Financial Position

Operating right-of-use-assets $ 366,649

Lease Liabilities-Classification in Statement of Financial Position:

Operating lease liability ; $ 362,067. , , .

• '--vc. t :,v'

'/ y S •' ' *" ;, »r> i). x\.. ^ • " 1 ' ^ ' t i'' ' > / *'

*  pi. ' ', ' ' I . » .
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NEW HAMPSHIRE ALCOHOL AND DRUG ABUSE COUNSELORS ASSOCIATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

'DECEMBER 31, 2023 and 2022 : ; ' . ; '

NOTE 9 LEASE COMNUTMENT(CONTR;nj™

"  . • /The weighted-average remaining leasetermandw^i^ted-avct^ rate are as follows:'
■  ; Wei^ted-average remaining lease termiin-yeais 2023

1 '■ . Operating leases ■ - . . 9.1

Weighted-average discount rate 2023
Operating leases . . o . " . 5-2% ..

•  ■ ' • Amortization expense recognized under operating Icases'was $40,291 and $0 and rent expense related to
' " this lease was $7,268 Md $53,315 as of December 31,2023 and 2022, respectively. ,These expenses are

, : categorized as occupancy costs on the statement of functional expenses, v

. ■ The fiiture minimum lease payments under finance leases with terms greater than one year as of
'  ' ■ December3|l:

.  - Operating
,  ' 2024 - $ 52,140. . • .

'  ■ ■ "2025 52,920 . '
,  ' 2026 53,700 . .

■ 2027 . 53,700 .
-  V ' ' . , 2028 . 54;750 ^ . V

'  , ' Thereafter 190.650 .
.  .. ' Total lease payments , ' : 457,860 ;. . -

V  'OTV discount - . - (95.7931 ; • -
,  ' -Present value of lease liabilities "362,067

. : " Less current portion . s. (52.1401-' •
'  ' Long-term" portion, lease liability . ^ $_3M^922 ' ■

NOTE 10 DEFERRED REVENUE
.. -

'' •' - NHADACA receives registration fees for future events. NHADACA had deferred revenue of $5,730
;  and $6;356 for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.' , ■

NOTE 11 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS .

Management has evaluated subsequent events through July 12,2024, the date on which the financial
statements were available to be issued to determine if any arc of such significance to require

. disclosure. It has been detennined that no subsequent events matching this criterion occurred during this
period.

■ •; V

13- .,  •' »r . • "i * • ■ .
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'Member-"'
; . :'. "• " '*

Board Position
Home address and V

phone

' \ A ■ j.. . '' _

'  Business Address . Emailaddress'., -

;,Diane .•

Fontneau',

Immediate Past

President

Dismas Home of NH '

.102 Fourth St • ' , • '

Manchester, NH 03102

Christine

McKenna/
President

■ GNCA/Keystone Hall ''
'133 Epping Road, Unit B

Exeter, NH 03833 . ,

j  ,

c.mckenna@nhpartnership.org .

, ^ ' • V

;  *,

• Carol Furlong "

">r*^ •.

President Elect . . -^*4 ' Retired.

■ ■ ■ :
. V ' • • ' .

i-
. Emily'Carrara ,'" V Secretary ■  '• ' ■' ' i"

Amoskeag Health ■ " ■ '

145HollisSt. ; '".j "■
.'Manchester^ NH 03101 -

,ecarrara@amo5keaghealth.org' •

'  • 1 ' ? •

^ ^ w *

.Christopher
Foster

y  '

Treasurer

• Executive Healthcare Consulting
13 Overlook Dr . ' - '
Raymond, NH 03077

Jim Michaels

i f- .' '

North Country
Representative

■ Seacoast Mental.Health' •
.30 Magnolia Lane
Exeter, NH 03833' V! '

Sara-- ' ■ .• -
'Dupqht, '

Lakes Region
Representative

Plymouth State University '
16 Highland St '
Plymouth NH 03264 •

•  * • '

'  Sara.dupont@plymouth.edu.,

■V

:-7 >

v7

V  *'*

/I'

r  f

V  , .
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-Julia Gamache "Central Rep

/journey Counseling Services . '
1193 Hooksett Rd., Unit 2

■'Hoqksett, NH 03106
journeycounselingnh@gmail.com •

■  C

'"Cher^le Pacapelli
r- ,

Southern

Representative

Harbor Care

45 High St
Nashua, NH 03060

c.pacapelli@harborcarerih.org •r

'  ' J" •

M'aury Elsasser
"Seacoast

■ Representative

PursueCare:

4 Meadow Lane

South Berwick, ME 03908

Elena" i' ,
VanZandt '

Connecticut

'Valley
Representative

HALO Educational Systems
RobertSrRd ■ ' '

Cariaan, NH.03741';v •

elenavanzaridt@HALOeducation3lsYstems.com
■' - • i ■

Phoebe Axtmah
'  f ■ ' •

/'*(»*«•

At Large.
Representative

Be One Cqunseling
"22_"Bridge Street, Suite 19 '■
Concord, NH03301:. "

phoebe.axtman@beonecounseling.com

V'

.•!' ' .t.'

Bobby.Ringuette'
At Large .
Representative

'  i • '

Greater Nashua Mental Health
7 Prospect St ^
Nashua, NH 03060 - •

■  -v?,, tr ^
ringuetteb@gnmhc.org^ • , . r-,r • . < *• - ' i- \

...

.IvySue Hranac •
At Large
Representative,

A MeaningfulJourney, PLLC .
60 Hanson St Unit2
Rochester, NH 03867 .

Robert Meshna
Student
Representative

The Doorway ofGreater Nashua
268 Main St

Nashua', NH 03060
Rob.Meshna@unh.edu '  - •' ..

I  -J. ,

' ''-y
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EMILY S. KANNENBERG

EDUCATION

' University.pf New Hampshire Graduate School
.^C MnsterofPublicjHealth- ■ , ^

-; University of New Hampshire ,
•, j Dual A^;or; Communication & Women's Studies
, . • Minors: Psi/cholog}/& Race, Culture, Power- , .
•  - • Regent's.University

Study Abroad... ' '

EXPERIENCE

Manchester, New Hampshire

Durharh, NewHampsWre"

London, UnitedjKingdom

May 2020 .
:GPA:3.7_^

May 2015. \
CPA: 3.5.

Spring 2014

'■ 1 ..

New Hampshire Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association i * . July 2021-Present
Training Director . . . ' : '
(' • ' -Direct and support the general-functions of the New Hampshire Training Institute on Addictive,Disorders'

,• I'Organize and implement training events within contract budget.guidelines
' • Contract reporting . ' • ' . ■ " ' \ ' '
'• ■ Supervise, evaluate, and delegate tasks to training staff ,

• I . Other duties as assigned .

Southern New Hampshire Services ' ■ Jan. 2019-June 2021
New Hampshire Works for R'ccovcnj Career Navigator . ' ,

'  ' • Hdped to implement and assisted in the success of a grant project aimed at helping individuals affected by the
^  opioid crisis find sustainable, Idhg-termernployment • . . ' • ' . , "
' • ; ' Assisted/ guided, and counseled clients with'various careef-ofiented tasks.includihg career exploration, job

% ' ' -search; job training research; job search, resume and cover letter preparation, and interviewing skills
'  • Guided clients through the process of applying (of, "managing ^e stresses of, and successfully completing '

.educational programs such as community college courses and other career preparation training
.  > •" Adjusted to and successfully met grant deliverables despite unexpected changes due to the COVTD-19 pandemic

, - Riycrbend'Community Mental Health - . . ■ , ■ ^ , •' " Jurie.2bl57Jan. 2019 ;
Program'Assistant [If . " •; . ' • . . .

•  Furiclioned'as d Program Assistant for both,the Cornmuhity Support Prograrh and the Integrated Center for '
-  • . Health .and demonstrated efficiency under pressure in fast-paced programs supporting clients with severe and

persistent mental illness . ' ' ' ••
•  Completed various administrative tasks induding answering-and Iriaging calls, completing'initial orienlatioh

appointments, assisting with pfograrii admissions, verifying and di^ussing'clieht insurance and fees,
" maintaining accurate medical records, data entry, and reconciliatioh research - •

'  Provided part-time support to both the Residential Program and the Medication Support Program ' .

SKILLS

•'-V
'.«v

Computer applications including Microsoft,
Apple, and Google programs.
Customer service.
Cultural, and racial awareness and sensitivity
Social media.expertise

' Strong understanding of intersectionalily/ .•
•  Strong communicator . ' f- ■
•  Detail-oriented' ' iV ■"

•• vv'. '.-r";. '

Self-motivated

Basic health screening activities
Critical thinking
Strong writing and .written communication
Experience with various case; management
platforms .

•v.i-

■i'.
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"  i

'> ' Erin V Masury.

:! <

- S-. -Work Experience:,

-  NHAOAGA.-Program Coordinator. November 2023 to Present - • '. * ''

Manage/Assist with participant, flinder and bontractor related communications. - /
Support the general functions of Clinical Supervisors and the overall workforce development

•  • program. ' • " ■' . . .
Recmit program candidates, contact potential participating agenci'es and completing all needed

>agreements, confidentiality and etirollment documentation..• .
.  ' Administrative duties, ' ^ V ■ ,

Monitor, testify and report on NH legislation that may impact substance use workforce and
.■ substance use licensure; attending and testifying at legislative hearings and sessions.

Complete contract compliance reports and assist Executive Director with various reports for
■  auditing purposes. ' \ -

Headrest. Director of Residential Services'. January 2019'to August 2023

"  ' Recruiting and hiring fesideiitial program staff. >
y'Ensure comprehensive orientation and,training for program staff - • ' • . '

'  Provide on-going supervision for staff: ' ■ - ' , • * .
■  Monitoring daily performance issues witlhn prograrn and assuring adherences to agency policies
•■■/and pfocedures". ; ' v' * ■ . . . ' . ' ' ' '

•  ■ -Oversee the collection of all data in accordance with ajD'plicable contracts, re^iiations, 'jmd State
,  ■ : laws.' ■ , ■ ■ . . ' '

•  • : Participate in community collaborations relevant to. the effective operation of the residential;
."' 1 prograrii. = ■ v : ^ ■

^  . .1 In collaboration with other program.staff and clients, ensure the safety of residents living,at
. .-.0 ■ Headrest. Health and safety functions include but are not limited to administering drug testing

(urine analysis) upon intake and on-going random drug screening; supervising and documenting
adminisfratipn of residents'- medications in accordance with policies and procedures, supervising
emergency building evacuations.

. ■ f ■■

I  I

.  , 'I . .

I

Becket Family Services. Youth Counselor/Community Leader. Jiilv 2015 to January 2019

Mentoring challenged teenagers to.overcome struggles. • :
Establishing boundaries and coping skills for teenagers,. ■ '
Leading indoor and outdoor activities to provide positive, experiences... -

.'Maintaining a safe and therapeutic environment for students and facility.

•  .f- '

'' ' V ■ ■'V:*''-''*" V', . ' ' ' • • • ' ' , ri V''
VV

{'■ \ - . • I

" ... 'I :

■> . - ■ I' ■
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'  '• Programming activities and daily interaction wtfli'students.

;  D.eveloping and supervising subordinate suff.. . ' ' -

/T'^ining for program staff; ■ ' ■ , '

■ S Formulators. Julv 20i4 to Julv 2015 ' , ' " . ' ' ' •. ■ ' ' '
Managed closely held natural body,careibusiness. • • .

-  Responsible for international and domestic shijjpingliog^tics- .
.  ' .'.Directed all material opefatibhs. , , .-v ' ' - ■

,  : Developing new products. . ■ . • , • • . ■ ;
,  Directed trade shows and developed'markettsiiategy. ' " .

' New Horizons for New Hampshire. Reception/Shelter Staff/HMIS Administrator. April 2010 to

- ■ July^2014 ^ . , , ■ , ■

,  ■ -Administered services to at-risk and homeless pppulafioh in a major metropolitan area. ■

' Developed fund raising strategy and outreach to. support not for profit objectives.

Scheduled and directed delivery of conimunity service.'and super\nsed volunteers.

■  .Supervised residents.

^  Developed policy and interacted with governmental-oversight and regulation.. . . ; , . •.

■; j '' V Storiefalls Gardens: Sales/Gardener. April 2005 to July 2017

V. - ' ̂ Led'sales team. ' • • •
•  ■ ■ . Designed display gardens/ ' • , • ' '

".Bookkeeping. ' . • . '• ■ ....•
v, " implemented customer reward system.'/ .. ^

Education: . ' '

■  . f Hamilton College, Bachelor of Science in Business'-Management, 2004,... ■
'• / ' •, . • * • • ' • * • j *' ■ ^

-y^ Skills:''
, Highly organized.
.Working knowledge in Microsoft Office/Excel/PowerPoint.
Excellent communication skills.

Able to multitask. . ' .

Leadership skills.
,  ! • Able to work well with others as well as iridependently.. . . .

Certifications: ^

CRSw y. '

.CRSW Supennsing CRSW's>

•  y. f.. '■

*. ::t. ■

.  . f,-*
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■V. .
CAROL J. FURLONG, LCMHC,iNlAC, MBA

SKILLS / ABILITIES / ACHIEVEMEPPPSIPROFILE

Administratioil:; Seasoned professional with progressive experiettce-.in'diveise •healthcare and educational environments,
inclnding operations, budget control, marketing, quality assurance, .nsk /manageiDent, utilization review, facility design and

,  , management, human resources, and strategic planning.

•Y ,'M8n#g€inent; Self-staitcr with, strong planning, controlling, organiaong and leadership skills. Effectively manages resourcesand ensures compliance with established policies and procedures, ^ill^ in'identifying and troubleshooting problem areas and
in^l^enting solutions. £)evcIoped comprehensive Quality Management, program. Restructured billing, triage and customer

■  service systems resulting In unproved productivity and efficiency. Extensive managed care experience.

CommunlcatiOQ; Articulate speaker and effective negotiator. Has spoken nationally and internationally.Writes with strength,
clarity and style. Natural ability to work with others. Consistently develops good rapport with staff, professionals, staff rhanagcrs
and community. Worics well as part of a team or indepmdenlly. Wrote and published several training and procedural manuals.
Extensive experience working with homeless individ^ls, individuals with .co-occurring disorder, the deaf and hard of hearing
population, those in the LGBTQ community and minority populations^

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

,  DIRECTOR OF SUBSTANCE USE SERVICES/SUD CONSULTANT 2017 - 2023
-  i ' Developed and rhanagcdSUD programs-Hillsborough County North Drug Coiol, including co-occurring rOP, a co-occurring

; Partial Hospitalization Program, four primary care practice MAT programs, SUD services in the Emergency Room to include
,  . ^ CRSW/MLADC and the MOM Grant- providing community collaborBtion to insure effective treatment for pregnant and post-

, • • partuiD women. Atteru] community^meetings to increase tttc effectiveness of coromtmity care, collaboration. Worked extensively
:  .with hbmcicss individuals, individuals withco-cccumngdlsorder, those in the LGBTQ'community and minority populations, .

insuring an understanding of culturally appropriate and de-sllgmatizing language. Co-wrote and developed SAMHSA MAT grant
for incarcerated indivhials. ' ■ " .-

'  VIOE PRESIDENT OF OPERATIONS . . : 2005-2017 '
•... [HarborHomes, Inc. ' ' " _ " . ; •' , * ' . Nashua,NH •

Managed over 250 clinical, ^residential and adminis^tlve staff aiKJ'.coordiiiatcd a continuum of service delivery for those
experiencing physical illness, mental illness, homelessness and other populations. Continuously expanded a fiilly integrated FQHC
for homeless adding dental, MAT, and Medical Respite services along with primary care and Behavioral Health services.
Developed Mobile Crisis Response Te^ for Greater Nashua area. Initiated and developed the state's Facilitating Organization
Grant that was responsible for the development of Recoveiy Support Oi^nizations in NH.

piRKTOR OF COMMUNITY SUPPORT iSERVICES DEPARTMENT - ; . '2003-2005
Community Council of Nashua • . ' ' " , , - ' ' Nashua, NH '
Develo^d and updated program plans, assured monitoring of implcmcntalioh'and implemented corrective actions as indicated.
Provided education/consultation to staff, other agencies or community ^ups. Provided supervision to a clinical staff' of
approximately 40 therapists, case managers and MIMS workers. Developed Regional Plannbg of adult services. ■ Assured
quality/appropriotcness of criticaraspects of care through ongoing monitoring.

DIRECTOR OF OirrCOMES & SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT 1999-2003
Community Council of Nashua Nashua, NH
Developed and maintained a Quality Management Program complying with NCQA and JCAHO standards. Monitored utilization
review, evaluated medical necessity, and continuation of care services. Developed effective medical records protocols. Directed
training for the agency. Coordinate cfToria resulting in highly successful JCAHO survey, (among the top 5% in the country).
Coordinated Customer Service pnd complaints process. . ' • •

-r-

•'!i ■

y  . r'v - •
5  •

■ ^ i .r F . I J

f  i-'.t
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;  . Heather C. Smith, LCMHC, MLADC, R-DMT ; ,

^  EDUCATION & LICENSES ,
Antioch University New England, Keeiie, NH Graduated April 2011! ' • . . ̂  * .

.  ■'•"Master of Arts inDance/Movement Therapy and Clinical MeniaiHeqlth Counseling • . • , i •
.  'Uiiiversit} of Louisiana at LafayefteV Lafayette, LA Graduated May 2007 * ' '

■  . Bachelor of FineArts in Performing Arts in Dance, Minor in Biolo^,\Cur[\\i\dii\ycGVk.2i.S,Cum JMude ■

.  •*Registercd-Dance/Movenicnt Therapist (American Dance TherapyAssociation) ",
'  ;r^ *Licenscd Clinical Mental Health Counselor-NH Board of Mem^fMealihPracticc #1141

,  , ' *Mastcr-lcvel Licensed Alcoholand Drug Counselor-NH Board ofAlcohol & other Drug Professionals #[0576
-  " o *Approvcd Supervisor for candidates seeking LCMHC, MLADC, CRSW > , .

;  ' CLINICAL EXPERilENCE: . V
'^NH Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Association-Concord, NH (May 2023-present) .
■: Clinical Supervisor-Credentiaiing Support Partnership , ' . "

■  Provide remote clinical siiper\'ision toward LADC aiid MLADC licensure to caseloads of up to 8 candidates from various'NH
.  : . * • . agencies to ensure understanding ofrelevam clinical and.practice issues and quality iinpiemcniation of treaimeni services.

,  ̂ ' Provide individual and group clinical super\'ision to licensure candidates in alignnicnl with the 12 Core Functions.
•'Coinmii lip to 5 hours per week per licensure candidate in providing direct supeiyision individually or in groups, case/chart ■

.  review, direct observation with clients, and consultation witli onsiie supervisors'.
■  , Guide licensure candidates in the completion of all required licensure documentation. ' ;

"VEnsnre compliance witlhstate certification/licensing standards, contracinal obligations, and agency policies and guidelines.
True Colors Counseling, PLLC-Troy, NH.(August 2019rpresent)

^ ^[Owner/Therapist
■  Provide individual ilierapy, focus primarily On SUD and.COD ' ' c '

,  - , . ■. . 'Provide exlemal clinical,supervision'for licensure/ccrtificaiion to LCMHC, M/LADC, CRSW candidates
^ ^ si' •/'Approved Impaired Driving Sendee Provider. .

_  ' : PATH Behavioral Health Care—Northeast Region (August 2021—April 2022) . ,
NE Regional Clinical Supervisor ' -• . ■. ■ . " •

^ Provide supervision of clinical staff and ensures compliance witli state and federarrcgulaiions/.CARF standards, and clinic , .
and corporate policies and procedures; . . .• .

;  ■ , Monitors llierapists'compliance witli productivity requirements and develops improvement plans
"  '•//, ' Ensures'quality patient care; conducts treauiicni plan reviews and chart audits, assesses levels of care for patients - . ;

'.Available for crisis interventions aiid work as a liaiispn in the community" • , • • •
v. Ensures ethical and profession conduct is conducted by clinical staff " , . . •

■  ; Greater Nashua Mental Health Center—Nashua, NH (May 2019—August 2021)
.Director of Substance Use Disorder Services . • ; • .

"  ..Oversees fiscal and programmatic "operation of the SUD deparlment ; [ ■ . ■ ,
.  ■-''(Oversees the'hiring, training, and supervision of dcpajtmcnt staff as well as provides clinical sendees ■

Provides consult and education to all siaff:of the agency, bllicr'agencies and the public v ' ' ,
'  -I' -i V • , Sencs as spokesperson for the dcpartmcin when interfacing within the agency and the comniunity

Avenues Recovery Extended Care (formerly New England RAW)—Concord, NH (03/2017—04/2019)
. Clinical Director (April 2018-April 2019) ,

, / . ' ■ Oversee clinical aspect of the agency including but not. limited to: - . ,
■  Provide supervision to clinicians; case managcrSj'and those seeking CRSW, LADC, and MLADC credentials •
'• Review all client charts for compliance . . \ . '

•  ■ Provide trainings/education to all staff . -• . .
■. Inspect that decisions of client carc arc ethical and that confidentiality and boundaries arc upheld

Primary Therapist (March 2017-April 2018) ■. .
,  . , ■ Provide individual and group therapy services to a,caseload of up to 8 clichts in a dual diagnosis ASAM level 11.5 setting .

• '/ Provide weekly check-ins with the client's family members upon consent of the client ' •
' Aitcnd daily m'prning meetings with day time management - , • , ' t, • . • ' '

Attend weekly clinical meetings, V ' '
.  .j; :?'Maihlain documentation deadlines including ircattncniplans,ASAM documents,'Bio-psycho-social assessments; suicide risk, .

^gi^traiuna screenings'./ v,/ ■/v ' ' ' '' '•
' i-'- -Phoenix Hdiise-Keene CenterT^-Keerie,NH (Septerriber. 2014-2-March.2017) . ^ "
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. Program Coordinator for Outpatient Services Sf UR Support (Aug. ̂ Old-March 2017),
/  Created a program Uiatsupports.menibersoflhccommunily as well as pariicipamsoftheClieshjre County Drug -
'  Court. . ■ ' • •"

:  ' ̂ Conduct Bio-Psycho-Social, ASI, ASAM and Other assessments necessary to provide prc-authorizaiions and.
■  ; ■ ' concurrent reviews to insurance companies. '
"  ■ - " ■ Provide treatment planning sessions arid group therapy for lOP and OP groups. . , ' • - . " .

,V " Oversee communication amongst the outpatient team is followed through and everyone is working together in . ' " ' .
•jf' order to create a smootli entry and exit for clients in llic.program.' ' - -v
a ' Collaborate with outside ser\'ices, such as.providing weekly updates both written and verbally to the CCDC team, •

act as llie representative from treatment to the CCDC, refer clients to outpatient individual tlierapy andpiKcr
services the client is willing to participate in that supports continuing care. ̂  ^ ...

Clinical Coordinator for Cheshire County Drug Court (CCDC) (Dec. 2015-Aug. 2016)
,. „ ■ ■ Assessed program needs and recommended changes to enhance and increase cfrcctivencs's ,
" . ■ Supcrviscdoiher clinical Staff conducting individual and group therapy to participants of;ilie CCDC.' ■ ^
•  Provided individual and Evidenced Based group therapies to participants of the CCDC. ; '
.  ■ Formatted weekly updates and sent to the CCDC program coordinator to place in,participants'weekly rcpons.

Met with the CCDC Program Coordinator and Case manager weekly to discuss sanctions, incentives, and .
.• ;• therapeutic interventions for each participant. ■ . '

■  Participated in weekly CCDC team mectirigs which included the judge, attorneys, probation officers,,. . •
'  • representatives from the CCHOC and other professional members of the community. , '

.  ■ Conducted GAIN assessments and follow-ups. '

■■ Met with participants at the CCHOC for individual counseling and/or assessments when necessary.
■■ Senior Primary Counselor for,B6arding and Community top (Sept. 2014-Dec. 2015)

■  Maintained a high caseload of adult clients with Co-occurring Diagnoses, providing Individual, Family, and _
,, ^ ■ Group Therapy
'  Completed Bio-Psycho-Social, Addiction Severity Index and A.SAM Assessments for insurance autliorizations

- " ■ Engaged jn On-call rotation
Prepared paperless Interpretive Sumjiiaries,-Discharge Summaries, Treatment Plans, Aflercare aiidTransition
plans _ •. ' ' ' .

'.. -S. • • Coordinated Family Nightfor Cotrimunity lOP with giicst speakers/commitment "speakers , • ' ' ' , '
.  "' ■; . ■■■ Collaborated with Alternative Sentencing Programs, Probaiion Officers, and DCYF; case niana'gcrs" .

Actively participated in twice daily change of shifts, weekly group and individual super\'ision ; !
Moiiadnock Family ServiceVChild, Adolescent and Family services—Kecrie, NH (July 2013 - end Aug. 2014)

• Keene 'Community Based Clinician
■ • Maintained a caseload of 25+clients from ages.5-21, providing Home, School and OlTice based Individual and

Family Therapy as well as Functional. SupportSch'iccs •
• f . Prepared paperless individualized treatment plans; quaricfly reviews, Targeted Gase.Mariagcmcnt, and Eligibility • .

V-. Ccriificalions ill a timely manlier* • • .. ■■ ' . . • . ' . • .
Ledtreatmcnttcamsofcasemanagcrs,communitysupportstalTiandothcrserviccsaclicntmay.hayc • '

■ " -Actively participated in Team Meetings, Reflective Team, and Group Supervisions
Brattlebpro Retreat—Brattleboro, VT (May 2011 - Nov. 2012)

'  iProgram Coordinator/Creative Arts Therapist". . • ' _ " • ' --
■  - Populations s_er\'cd:.children's inpaticni,'adolescent inpatiem, adult co-occuiring disorders inpaticrii, adult basic psych, LGBT •

' v .' i adult inpatiem, aduitjntensiveinpaticnt, unifon.ned seivices'program-outpatient '. .
.  ■ Implemented programming on tlic newly established Adult Intensive Unit-an inpatiem, mostly involuntary uiiit •

■  , ■ -.for patients diagnosed with schizophrenia disorders and bipolar disorders in acute state of psychosis
•  ■ Led psycho-educationai, experiential, and recreational groups daily (on-and off-unit)
■  Part of a daily multidisciplinary treatment team, created treatment plans, managed case documentation,

formulated tlierapeuiic assessments, and provided group notes •
■  Developed a rewards program in which patients nominate one another for "community roles" on the unit
■  Worked with aflercare providers to set up a sensory room for a spccinc'patiem's needs
■  Chosen to implement TS assessment fomiat for EHR transfer and EHR trainer to TS staff .

'  '■ Provided support for other milieu staff. . • , '
' PROFESSIONALSOCIET1ES& SPECIAL INTERESTS: ' ^ -
' - ■ ■ American Dance Therapy Association (ADTAj-^c/Zve/'wyiw/o/ji?/A/ewiier

■  ..National Association for AlcoholLsm and Drug Abuse Coun.selor.s (NA.ADAC)-)lcriV^/;rt)/e.v.worn-//member
NH Chapter,(NHADACA)-/lc/ri'e/;m/e.wmnfl/we'wAer j .. ' '

-•i, • Alp.haOmicron Pi Fratcrnity'-BostonAlumnac Chapter
'  " New England American Dance Therapy A'ssociation,(Sepl, 20l():,Aj3ril 20i l,)- ' AlJNE.Slu'deni Representative ' •,

-T ■ ' 7 i' ' ;
y .■ - • f' t- i ' ' . , ' . '. , •

4' '. ' ' -r .> . i",..;;'"', •' *I«" f , 'r\ ' \ 'i'- . ■ /j . ■ "' ■ t
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CHRISTINE M. MCKENNA
V _' licensed social worker-criminal justice consuhant-ttacher-sccial advocate

,  FROFli.E ■ ■ ' , ' '

•• 'Over thirty years experience in the crintina] justice and hujiian'send£«:^tenis.
■ , • Organlj^, highly motivated, and detail-directed problem solver. , . -

•  Proven ability to work in unison with staff, volunteers, community stakeholders, criminal justice professionals.
• Goal-oriented individual with strong leadership capabilities.
•  Experienced with community programs as a department liaison toiaddress social needs. '■
• College level teaching experience in human services and crimii^l justice curriculum

-  v./:- EXPERI-EN^Cs' . '

■  ' PROGRAM DIRECTOR, ROCklNGHAM COUNTY, HARBOR CARE/GNCA KEYSTONE HALL; EXETER, NH,

^  ̂ , 2(n6-CURRENT- " •
Monitor drug court activities thru a multi-disciplinary team approach, including liaison to the state, county and team'
members to include," but not-limited to the monitoring of compliance with ALL RISE best practices and components :

^  for. treatment courts including the compiling data and preparing reports to the team/state/county/federal entities.
■  .'Superviseclinical arid casemanager meinWrs of the team to ensurt fidelity to treatment models are adhered to and ;;

-  administered in accordance with b«t practices, and in compliance with state and agenc)'policy/CARF accreditation
'  . V'-if ■ Engage in treatment (group/individual), including conducting kreenings/assessments with participants in - '

-  accordance with best practices and curriculum. Monitor and report to fiscal agents on drug court expenditures.
-  ".Maintenance of all clinical licensure rkjuirements (LICSW/MLADC) per State of New'Hampshire requirements.

■  • /.Additional certifications/trainings to include trauma, personality dik»rders, DBT, EMDR. Contribute to'Keystone
••Hall leadership team with trainings and projects to enhance treatment delivery systems, monitor/maintam and

'  , report on accreditation standards. ■ ' • . •. ' "

.  ' ■ PROGR^ SUPERVISOR-HlLLSBOROUGHCOymr HOUSE OF CORRECTION-SATCO&MAT/LADC

■ ' V ' ,2026-CURRENT' . ■■ ,
Supervise staff contracted to provide substance use disorder programming/services at the HUlsboroiigh County
Hou^ of Correction. This includes MAT services, lOP and case management services. Liaison to the jail in criminal
justice programming and sutetance use disorder treatment ser\'ices. •

PROGRAM COORDINATOR, NEW HOPE PROGRAM, KEYSTONE HALL, MANCHESTER, NH 03103,2015 - 2016

Development and implementation of a federally funded program for justice involved individuals in the Hillsborough
County/North jurisdiction. .Position involves being a liaison to a criminal justice team to advise on system and

.  • strategies during the program implementation. AdNdse team members and community stakeholders on current
, V. treatment practices while incorporating current trends and,knowledge in the fields of addiction, justice, mental health

and social ser\'icc practice.- Additional responsibilities include regular performance measure tracking reporting to
^  federal source as well as working with other technical training assistance entities to ensure program compliance. . •

's''* •' * * ' ■ ' . t
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Supervision.of a case manager includes monitoring community resource referrals, screening/assessments, treatment,

plans and drug testing polides/procedur^. , ' ; , , . , ;

RE-ENTRY CLINICIAN, STRAP,FORD COUNTY .COMMUNITY CORRECTIONS';
;  / ■ , ^ DOVER,,;NH- 2014 ■

, Programming of irimates and community correctioiis offenders toiiriclude cognitive behavioral iht^ventions to assist
iii rehabilitation arid re-entry eifforts. ' . / • • '

CHIEF PROBATION/PAROLE OFFfCER",-'R'OCKING'H"A'M COUNTY, N. H..
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS", EXETER, NH 2007-2012 '

Supervision of a district office and two sub-offices that mana^s approximately. 1000 offenders. Monitors, audits and
reviews collections, supervision cases, pfesentence investigation reports, annulments and workload analysis in a

large district office. Evaluates personnel peffprmaric.e and initiates necessary action corisistent.with performance ' •
measures and outcomes. Liaison to the comrhunity, courts,.criminaI justice agencies and treatment providers on ■

probation/parole matters. Training, develop aiid supervise employees in accordance with certification and , ^

accreditation jxilides. Collaboration with key agencies in developing solutions within corrununities including mental

health court, drug court, and STAR program at the Rockingham County Jail. Prepared presenterice investigation
reports for sentencing hearings! Assist in the development, coordination and implementation of training department

training initiatives. • . ) . • ' - .

- SENIOR PROBATION/PAROLE OFFICER, NEW' HAMPSHIRE DEPARTMENT. OF-
• - ' • ■ , CORRECTIONS, DOV.ER./MANCHESTER T995-2007 , , ;

Enforcement of court and parole board orders for offenders on probation and parole:" Prepared .
' documentation and reports for the court and parole board. Investigated home'and employment for parole
; release. Prepared sentencing recomm'endations for the court. Prepared violations for court and parole board
review. Attended hearings at the court and parole board'to seek.resolutions for violations. Provided referral
services to individuals under supervision! for treatment and education. Developed and implernented a
women's group for female offenders. This group is,educational based providing solutions'in decision
making and life skills'from a gender specific perspective. • , • ' , , •

■:ADjUNCT FACULTY, SPRINGFIELD COXLEGE, MCINTOSH COLLEGE,-GREAT BAY
:  COMMUNITY-.COLLEGE, RIV.IER CO LLE'G E,G R A N IT E STATE COLLEGE, NEW

. , • HAMPSHIRE 2003-2020 . •

Adjunct faculty member in crinunal justice and human ser\nces programs.

CORPORATE TRAINER, BALANCING LIFE ISSUES 2019-2023

MENTAL HEALTH, SUBSTANCE USE, WELLNESS, SUICIDE PREVENTION.

ALL RISE (formerly National Association for Drug Court Professionals (NADCP)) •

Faculty member 2023• .

BETIRRHELP-OnUne Therapist-2022-CU^Ets^

.  "i.
•: r .

(  ' :r
'  . ' 1 •
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EDUCATliOTSr-'

SIMMONS UNIVERSITY, BOSTON, MA-current student, DoctorateinSaialTVorl: ' -

■  .BOSTON UNIVE^ITY, BOSTON, MA-MASTER OF .SOCIAL WQRK,2DB -

SPRINGFIELD COLLEGE, MANCHESTER, NH - M.S., ORGANI2ATI0N,mfiNAGEMENT AND LEADERSHIP/
2004;" ; ■ ; • , ^ ■

COLLEGE FOR LIFELONG LEARNING, PORTSMOUTH, NH -'B.S;,!BE{^ViORAL SCIENCE, 1995 -

i  -v LICENSE/CERTIFICATION
a,j ; - " - . ' . . . ' ' . ■

'  2018-State of NH-Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor . ij
-2019-State of NH - Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker , ,

■  2019 - Evergreen Certifications-Certified Clinical Trauma Professional '

RELEVANT EXPERIENCE/SKILLS

■  Assiisted in the impienientation of Domestic Violence Programs in M^chester.NH 1995-1999 and Strafford ,
.  "County (1999 - 2001).' • ;

, ; ' • - Chair of the Domestic Violence councils in both Dover and Manchester District Court Councils (1993-1996).

' \ • > ■ Created Women's Group in Str^ford County for female offenders for gender specific programnung. •
'  ■ Instructor NHDOC.' " . .. - .... . . - • . . -

.  'f • 'Governor's Commission on Domestic and Sexual Violence
;,o. " • ̂  Mental Health Court coordination-Rockingharri County (Portsmouth Pilot)

.  . 'i Rockingham County, Drug Court (founding member)' " ' * ' . f"jf,- -r •• .
'  • • ^ice-Chair Board of Directors, NH Task Force on Women■& Recovery (2007 - 2010) " . . ,

V  Board of Directors, Hyder Family Hospice House, Dover, NH (2014-2017,2019-)-
Adjunct Faculty Member for Mclntosh College, Springfield College and Great Bay Community College. Self

- . directed and supervised in tlie management of students
•  Sole proprietor - CmcKenna Consulting. Providing evaluations/sentencing memorandums for courts ^

VOLUNTEER/COMMUNITY
r

Seacoast.Suicide Prevention Coalition - 2012- - 2014. Co-facilitation/suicide survivor group and coordination of
suicide prevention efforts on the NH seacoast. , ■ ,

Seacoast Hospice, a Division of Beacon - 2009 - 2012,2018-Specializati6n in bereavement work.

Friends of Hyder Family Hospice House-2015 - 2017, 2019-2023, Board of Directors

V  ; ^ Dover Adult Learning Center, Board of Directors (2010-,2011) - ' . ,

. ' i

.  ' ''if. •

.  I ■
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■  ■■ Leadership Seacoast, Class of 2009

,  NASW - InTH, Board of Directors (2012) . . -

.  . Seacoast Suicide Prevention CoaJition (2012) • . . . " .

.  " New En^ahd Association of Recovery Court Professionals, 2015-airrent, Board of Directors • .

' NHADACA (NH Affiliated of NAAC^);-Board member, 2020,Secreta^, 2020, President-Elect, 2023

NAADAC-JEDI committee member 2024 ■./

AWARDS

^NHTasicForceoriWomenand Recovery- June 2006.'Recognition for comrnunity work with.addicted and recovering
-.women. ■ ' ' '

NH Children's Trust Fund - Febmary 2008, Hero Award

:S. .

•  t; .V' , V . - ■ . ' - '

"a>'■' ■ , -I-*
rj-

.

'-V
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Nicholas D. Pfeifer, ucsw, mladc

Work fcoPERiENCE . - ■ •

Clinical Supervisor New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors.Associdtioh - Concord, NH. Provide remote
Individual arid group clinical supervision to LADC and MLADC carididates;.iEnsure provision of direct and indirect

supervision to.fulfill licensing application requirements; Provide guidance,-support and mentorship with interpreting

. and understand State regulatory rules and laws surrounding credentia'lirig'through the supervision and application
process; Teach clinicians about the 12 Core Functions that guide the addiction counselors'scope of practice; Complete
admiriistrative duties for program development, Ensure compliance with state certification/licensing standards,

contractual obligations, and agency policies and guidelines. February'2023 - Present. ' ' :
_f , > i ^ » ' . '

Head of Counseling & Psychological Services/Clinical Director - NH Better Life Partners - Hanover, NH. Managed

clinical services for SUD and Co-Occurring services in 4 states; Provided direct oversight to state clinical directors;

Work with Quality/Compliance to ensure-that all clinical services meet requirements for state-specific regulatory
standards and CARF standards; Completed program/agency development and Initiatives with other departments;
Worked directly with Chief Health Officer to ensure collaborative/integrated care models; Managed daily clinical

services in New Hampshire including providing clinical supervision, providing trainings, staff scheduling, and 120+

group counseling sessions weekly; Engaged with community partners and the State to identify and collaboYate on

identified needs for the SUD population in the state; Assisted in development of policies and procedures. May 2020 -

. October 2022. ■ . . • '

' Consultant/Owner Coirr) Consulting, LLC - Loudon, WH. Provide clinical and administrative consultation services to
agencies treating substance use disorders (SUD) and co-occurring disorders; Conduct clinical and administrative

reviews; Provide clinical,supervision and trainings; Review services and provide recommendations for QA/QI and

^...adherence to regulation'standards; As'sist in development of policies and procedures. May 2019 - Present.

Adjunct Faculty New England College, School of Graduate and Professional Studies - Henniker, NH. Teach graduate

courses at various cohorts for Master's in Counseling prograrh (Substance Abuse and Addiction, Intern Seminar);
Develop and present course curriculum; Review and grade papers, July'2010 - July 2020.

Chief Executive Officer Southeastern New Hampshire Services - Dover; NH. Directly responsible for the administration,

developrnent,^.managei^ent,and'operations of Substance (Jse Disorder (SUD) agency;.Difect.pversight of multiple
levels of care for treatment (ASAM Levels 3.5, 3.1, 2.1, & l),'lmpaired Driver Care Management Program (IDCMP), and

Community Navigator program/project; Established policies and procedures; Direct oversight pf all aspects of annual

budget (State/F.ederal funds, private foundation and trusts, grant writing and fundraising); Responsible for building
visibility pf agency, programs; and public policy positions; Ensured that mission and strategic plan are carried out

under guidance from Board.of Trustees; Recruited, developed, and managed all staff; Provided direct supervision and

leadership to the Management Team; Assisted the Board of Trustees in financial planning and funding of program

initiatives; Served as member of.the Executive Committee for NH Integrated Delivery Network (IDN ,6). August'2018 -
May 2019. . '

Clinical Director Southeastern New Hampshire Services.- Dover, NH. Directly supervised clinical programs and

personnel; QA/QI in development and maintenance of all clinical programs; Engaged In.program development and
.  operational changes; Assisted in management of internal policies and procedures; Oversight and provision of trainings

on clinical and operational topics; Maintained compliance with federal, state, and local regulations; Ensured effective

provision of clinical services to all programs; Assisted in preparation of annual operating budget; Reported on
program development, fiscal budgetary status, and proposed operational changes; Ensured efficacy of clinical

approaches and standards.in all,programs; Worked with IDN 6 with SUD projects and served as a member ofthe

'• Clinical.AdvispryTearn. January 2017-'May 2019. '• ,•

CliriicajJSUD Cqprdinator Beacon Health Strategies - Monchester, WH., Established/Coordinated benefit for'Substance
UsVDisbrders.(SUD) for health plan (WeirSense).as a-Managed Care,Organization (MCO) for expanded Medicaid in
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,NH; Worked with co-workers/supervisors to provide ongoing development of knowledge with SUD; Conducted SLID
progVam.site reviews and assessed compliance with State and Beacon rules,and regulations for programniihg;
Established arid maintained professional relationships with the State of NH, residential SUD programs, and other
facilities/providers of services (outpatient, residential, lOP/PHP, Outpatient, etc.); Cohrimunicated with supervisors
arid health plan regarding expansion of SUD services; Utilized clinical knowledge/experience to conduct utilization

reviews with agencies for approval of appropriate SUD treatment; Wo''^ed with members to establish services with
treating issues related to SUD; Completed reports and maintain cliriical/administrative documentation. October 2014

-'December 2016. " • ^ ■ ,
.1 . " . . _ • .

Fee-ZorrSe/v/ce C/m/c/orj/?/ver6end Com/nun/ty Mento/Weo/f/i Center - Concorc/,/VH. Provided individual
psychotherapy for adult outpatient clients; Completed intake assessments arid evaluations on new clients; Formed

■  • diagnostic formulations and individual service plans with clients;'Maintained clinical documentation; Established and

rnaintained relationships with referral sources and community,supports. April 2013 - October 2014. ,

Clinical Supervisor Centerfor Life Management - Derry, NH. Direct oversight of clinical operations of the Assertive'

Community treatment (ACT) team; Coordinated, consulted and 'supervised substance abuse and dual diagnosis
services throughout the agency; Provided individual and group psychotherapy services to adult cliehts; Completed . .

.  •assessments ahd evaluations with new clients for SUD and/or Co-Occurring Disorders; Formed diagnostic
■  formulations and individual service plans with clients; Provide individual and group supervision to clinicians;
Established and maintained relationships with referral sources and community supports. October 2010 - October

2014.

Adult Outpatient Clinician Centerfor Life Management - Derry, NH. Provided individual and group psychotherapy for

adult outpatient clients; Communicated with'clinical and medical staff regarding clients and clinical practice;

Cornpleted intake assessments and evaluations on new clients; Formed diagnostic formulations and individual service

plans with clieri'ts; Provided individual and group supervision to agency employees and interns; Provided case and
program consultation for delivery of substance, abuse and co-occurririg disorder services; Completed substance abuse

assessments/evaluations. August 2007 - October.2010. ' . - !

. Program Director WestBridge Community Services - Manchester, NH. Coordinated staffing of residential dual

disorders program to ensure required level of service to clients; Provided direct supervision to'staff; Worked with

.other member's of the leadership team to provide ongoing program development; Provided individual and group

'  counseling; Facilitated and co-facilitate Family Education arid Support sessions; Reviewed all admissions . . -
documentation for completeness;'Ensured

program compliance with local, state'and federal regulations; Identified and took corrective actions to address

mairitenanceissues with facility; Communicated with the treatment team daily on participant progress; Supported
•,:staff in,understanding and assisting participant needs. October 2005 - February 2007. .

; Outpatient Therapist/LADC Carroll County Mental Health - Wolfeboro', A/H.,Performed formal substance abuse '
assessments for courts and multiple offender programs; Worked with clients on an ongoing basis and assisted with

the development of treatment plans; Counseled clients in individual and family formats to work towards established

■ goals; Maintained working relationships with agencies and resources; Responded to client crises and emergencies;

Documented developments and Important events in accordance with clinical policies. August 2003 - August 2004.

Program Supervisor Child and Family Services - Manchester, NH. Developed and supervised outpatient/intensive

outpatient substance abuse treatment program; Recruited and trained program staff; Provided daily supervision of

clinical team; Coordinated team's efforts for interdisciplinary approach to treatment; Facilitated team meetings and

<intra and inter agency communications; Oversaw the development of the treatment protocols and schedule of

services; Reported to the Cpmmunlty Advisory Board on prograrn development, service.volume and resource

allocation challenges; Worked closely with consulting medical services to insure that Individual treatment plans were '

"appropriate;-Insured that all program counselors implemented.individual treatment'plans; Seryed as primary -

■ counselor for up,to six clients, providing individual, group and family counseling; Documented^and.maintained^ .
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individual client records; Supervised all clinical documentation by conducting chart prograrri reviews. August 2002 - -
June 2003;

•  ( , • • -

Program Director Phoienix House, Phoknix Academy at Dublin -iDublih, NH. Planned, implemented and managed
staffing to ensure required level of service to clients; Ensured training and clinical supervision'were provided; Directed

.and.evaluated contract utilization and programming to meet requirements and achieve contract renewal;.Ensured
program compliance with'local, state and federal regulations; Over.saw community mobilization and local fundraising

. activitie's-'Developed budget and rhonitored and reported to supervisor oh budget line items; Conducted, and
' monitored the occurrence of case conferences and staff, safety/andiquality assurance rneetings; Led staff to
V understand and cooperatively undertake actions to meet client needs. January2001 - August 2002;

'Education

Mostero/Soc/o/IVor/f University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH. 2005.
Bachelor of Arts in Persondlity/Social Psychology Keene State College, Keene, NH. 1997.' '

■ Associate of Science in Human Services/Mental Health New Harripshire Technical Institute, Concord, NH. 1995.

Bf.T .TVANT liCENSES/BOARDS/COMMnTEES/AWARDS ^

• NH Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker (LICSW #1547) - State of New Hampshire. Since 2010.

• NH Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (MLADG#531).- State of New Hampshire. Since 2002.

• State of NH Board of Licensing.for Alcohol and Other Drug Use Professionals. March 2017 - February 2020.

• Well Sense Health Plan T Provider Advisory Committee. Febfuary2017-January 2021.
- •' Recipient of the Lifetime Achievement Award - NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association. November 2018.

References .

Available'upon request. ^ . .. . \

• • • ;. • '•

^  "V ■ - j--!; ■ ''

*' • • '' • ; -i'l. ' .

•  , i

■. > 1 • ■.. • • •> «•, .
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DIAJSNE P. CASTRUCCI

' - LICENSURE Master Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor

EDUCATION

EXPERIENCE

•f

■  ' '.i i'

■vV.-,

Master of Education Degree. May 1993' . , ,. "
Concentration: Counselor Education: Human Services . . ■ v
Bachelor of Science Degree. Mav 1989 . , . ■ *
Major: Elementary Education Minors:'Psychology and Human Ser\>ices
Plymouth State College, Plymouth, N.H. ' • . '

Executive Ciircctor. NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselofs Association. .
Concord, N.H.— June 20l2 -Present ■ • ' .
Prbrnoted to Executive Director in June 2012, the Chief Executive Officer of .
NHADACA reports to the Board of Directors, provides leadership and direction in
the development and delivery of all activities and is responsible for the
organization's consistent achievement of its mission and financial objectives."
•  cnsures-thc organizational operations and activities are provided in the highest '

•  quality planner within the organization's fi scal and human resource limitations.
•  administers all grants, contracts, and agreements and informs the Board of

Directors of these and other commitments.
•  ensures the fi scal integrity and stability of the organization.
•  staffs the day-to-day operations and provides leadership to staff and volunteers.
•  serves as a spokesperson for the organization in public settings, consistent with

the mission, policies, and activities of the organization.

Training Institute Director. NH Alcohol & Drug Abuse Counselors Association/ NH
Training Institute on Addictive Disorders, Gilford, N.-H.'— Feb. 2004 - June 2012
Coordinates logistics of workforce development opportunities for substance use-
prevention,.intervention and treatment professionals.throughout New Hampshire.
• consults with treatment and prevention professionals to identify specific traitiing

topic needs and.local or regional trainers with expertise on that topic.
• contacts trainers, contracts their scr\uccs and coordinates travel-arrangements
• maintains participant database including attendance, tuition and CE information!
• coordinates functions associated with presenting major conference and training
.  workshops of various sizes, and at various-locations, statewide.

Board Administrator: NH Board of Licensing for Alcohol & Other Drug Use • >
Professionals, Concord, N.H. — September 2011 March 2012
Write Board correspondence, create agenda for and keep minutes at Board rneetings,
organize professional packets for review, maintain databases, arrange and order
testing, database auditing, other administrative functions as assigned by the
chairperson of the board. • . .

I

Substance Use Outpatient Counselor. Horizons Counseling Center,
Gilford, N.H.— January 2006-May 2013
Provide substance use counseling scr\'iccs related to cyaluation and group treatment
to individuals in an outpatient setting and facilitate various psycho-educational
groups including Project ADAPT to be held at, and in coordination, with the
Belknap County Department of Corrections. • ' ' , ,

■  " 'v ■■ '
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Exit Counselor. Community Alcohol Information Program, Inc., Boscawen,"Nashua
and Laconia, N.H. — July 2003 - November 2005
Conduct exit interviews for clients at the completion of the CAIP, impaired Driver •
Intervention Program for DWI first offenders. Attended PRI training October 2003."
• diagnosed, and referred as appropriate, DWI first offenders'for alcohol

.dependence and/or alcohol abuse upon file review and structured exit interview.

Licensed Substance Use Outpatient Counselor. James Foster & Associates,

Manchester, N.H.— October 2003 — July 2004 " . ■ ■ ■ - .
Provide substance abuse services related to evaluation and brief treatment

of individuals in an outpatient setting.

Corrections Counselor/Case Manager. NH Department of Corrections. Lakes

Region.Facility, Laconia, N.H. ̂  December 1998 - February 2004
Providing clinical services "of inmates participating in a modified therapeutic' , .
community treatment program (Summit House/Level 3 Substance Abuse Services).

• chaired and participated on, professional development committees to determine
staff training needs and involvement, VOITIS grant fund use, as well as planning
and coordination of multiple substance abuse training events for DOC staff.

•  supervised inmates in lectures, clinical groups, cornmuniiy meetings, clinical
staffing, individual counseling sessions and other clinical group'activities. •

• prepared/maintained clinical charts including evaluations,.discharge summaries,
treatment transfer information for parole and aftercare recommendations.

Aiitioch New England Adiunct Facultv. Summit House Program, Lakes Region .
Facility, Laconia, N.H. ̂  May 2000 - May 2002 • " ■ .
Field supervise and train graduate interns from the Antioch Graduate School of New
England in methods and practice of.substance abuse counseling. • ._
•  ihten'iew, accept or deny, tcach/train and supervise master's level interns.

■• ."communicate with professional seminar leaders. ' L- ^ '

Substance Use Counselor. N.H. Bureau of Substance Abuse Services,
Multiple Offender Program, Laconia, N.H. — December 1993 - December 1998-
Working as a clinical team member providing assessment, education and
intervention services to individuals convictcdpf multiple DWIs. -
• conducted intake/orientation, educktion, Individual and group counseling,

evaluation and assessment services relevant to client's substance use, medical,
psychological, legal and social history.

•  represented the program at official hearings of the Dept. of Motor Vehicles.

OTHER
ACTIVITIES Legislative Commission on Primary Care Workforce Issues 2018-Prcsent

NH Governor's Commission Treatment Task Force 2018-2022
NH LADG Board Peer Review Committee April 2013- March 2019_
Associate Member of the Elearning Guild October 2012-2014
Member of National Association of Forensics Counselors 2002-2012



Docusign Envelope ID: 923B2B29-7C62-440B^1B3-ED75D4E76A70

*  "j . * " I

; '

. k- .

- J- '

N H Department of Health and Hum^ Services

KEY1>E!S;ONNEL \

Job descriptions not requiredfor vacantpdsitions. '

' -v . ' ' ' i , ;• ' •*1^ ' ' ' » , '

Contractor Name: .; NH Aico'holand Drug TVbuse Counselors Association

NAME. •
• ' ' ' i

JOB TITLE .

ANNUAL

AMOUNT PAID '

;  FROM THIS

;  CONTRACT

ANNUAL

SALARY

Dianne Castrucci Executive Director $12,669.28 $97,456.00

Emily Kannenberg Training Director- . '  $2,024.01 .  $67,467.00

Erin Masury Program Coordinator .  $18,900.00 $63,000.00

Nick Pfeifer ' ' Clinical Supervisor ' $25,948.80 $86,496.00

Heather Smith Clinical Supervisor $25,948.80 .  ■ $86,496.00

Chrstine McKenna Board President . ' , $0.00 $0.00

Carol Furlong Board President'Elect $0.00 $0.00
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